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To contribute the nation for the economic
development, serve the customers by
providing financial access and quality
banking products and services,
maximize the value of the
shareholders' wealth, provide
excellent growth opportunities
to the employees and meet
the expectations of

To be the leading other stakeholders.

development
bank of Nepal
by providing
banking
Access to All".

@ * Professionalism
* Community Focused
H * Integrity

* Teamwork

» Customer Qriented




Q m-llkalh mited

T\ Otrategic Pillars

-]m\ ; W "

TITIT FSTRATEGlC F]L]I_Aasr TITIT

Our core strength is guided by the philosophy

Good Corporate
and motto of good corporate governance.

Governance

o

Ciictomer Livk o 1 } We believe in long and sustainable relationship
5 e Firss | -
with our customer.

Banking Access . Contribute to the development of the country

by attending the long term of the bank.
Human Hesource@
SME Loans g

Skilled, experienced and honest human
resources with positive can do attitude.

Risk diversification and reaching to larger group.
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~\Key Milestones

EMI Facility Introduced in
Credit Card

{First Time in Developmant Bank)

Joint Operation with
Sahara Bikas Bank Ltd.

Head Office shifted to
Lazimpat, Kathmandu

Joint Operation with
Subekshya
Bikas Bank Ltd.

Joint Operation with

Nilgiri Vikas Bank Ltd & Asadh 29
upgraded to National Level 20 72
Development Bank

Chaitra 20

Upgraded
10 District Level
Development Bank

Formal Inauguration

Formal Operation

License from NRB to
perform its financial
transaction
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—\ Key Compliance Ratios

-» Capital Adeguacy Ratio (Total Capital Fund to Sum of Risk weighted
Exposures)

_..» Gapital Adeguacy Ratie (Total Primary (Core)/Tier 1 Gapital to Sum of Risk
Weighted Exposure Ratio)

—» Liguidity Ratio (Net liquid Assets to Total Deposit Ratio)
---» [ther real estate loan to total loan ratio
--» Total real estate loan to total loan ratio

--» Single Obligor Limit (Total lending to highest one group/core capital’)

- Investment on single share, debenture or mutual fund to core capital of
previous liscal year (Except Subisdiary Investment)

Total investment on share, debenture or mutual fund to core capital of
> previous quarter

Deposit Concentration on single depositor over total deposit

---» Total Corporate deposit to total deposit ratio

--» Gash Reserve Ratio (CRR)

--» §tatutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR)

---» [eprived sector lending to total loan and advance of six months back
--» Priority sector lending to total loan and advance of six months back
--» Total Loan against Share/Margin Lending to Total Capital Fund

--» Interest Spread

--» Gredit to Deposit (CD) Ratio

Bank's Actual
NRB Standard Position ason
Requirements

= Minimum 10% 10.54%

Minimum 6%

Minimum 20%

Maximum 10%

Maximum 25% 36

Maximum 10%

Maximum 30% 0.41%

Maximum 30% 8.71%

Maximum 10% 2.21%

Maximum 50%
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Minimum 4% of g
Total Deposit LA

Minimum 10% .
of Total Deposit MEZZAKS
e

Minimum 17% 36.06%

Maximum 40% 17.168%

Within 4.8% 4.60%

Maximum 80%
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—\\ Financial Highlights (F 2079/80)

Paid-up Capital

(As on date)
R d
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Bank at a Glance

(As on Mangsir end 2080)

123

Branches «
'I'

9

Regional
Offices .-

54,000+ -
QR Mg;uhers

130,000+
DeblftHCurd _:"Bunking
~ 700,000+ -
Customers ™
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Board of Directors

M. Bimal Pandey Me. Sanjeev Dhakal
Diredor Director
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Mrs. Saraswati Pathak ~ Mr. Mukunda Raj Acharya
Director Independent Director
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Team




Team

Mr. Anurhian Shrestha |

Heod-Logistig & Genarcl Senvdce

" Mz Sanju Prasad Ja
Head-Human Respurces

Mz Ishowarl Prasad Dhakal
Heod-Credit Adminisirotion

M. Bhakta Bahadur KC
Head-Deposit Resource Management

M. Roshan Timilsina
Head-Opetatian

Mr. Kamal Prasad Aryal
Head-Information Technology

—— / 13



Team

Mc. Min Prasad Subedi

“ Haud Credit Ensl: hssessment

M. Krishna Shrestha
Heod-Collaction, HPA & HBA Managemgn!

M. Dipok Raj Bhandari
Haud-tist Management & Legol

Ms. Sumana Sharma
Heod-Internal Audi

M. Keshob Timalsina
Head-Finance, Account & Treasury
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Regional Manager

| POKHARA |

[T —

Eagissc] Vimoos

“Hagnang - & — Mt Bhwada Proved Tiwari
Bajurs § ! | i s Fegood By

- ' . W Fesen Rijal
Ennchagn : . 10 A A Pgrecd Menagm

M. Dayn o Aryal

Remionz] Marmew

Miaicinoes H
A 1 Gimnkhuw assrs

Ssormhumbs
i Tandepung

Khokang  Bogna Torastm
Fanchthiar

Ryl Monggar

Rapunal Menggen
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N\ We are for the society

aMlitte

Distribution of School Bags to Students and Handover of Digltal Board to Traffic Police
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FEATIAIT FHITeaa ARl TSAT qIT a1 qlaem MR T JATSTHH] AT FHATT Ja1 qraar qAfd, TAawnT qed qieard qadr
FEIT WTEIRA0T AR FFawdl HIArs AT TATSTH! ATNT FFIT TEIRI0 AR FFwdl TEhl G | Soci@d ¥ T2l Toarabedidg
IY-atafa FTET faebra Sepept fTafaa wTIEE 9T GAEHERT TATSHR! AN AGLMIALINT FATTETaHT AR S | TGH @ieg
THEAT FTUATS TATARR] TAT TRET TATSAR! AN THE FTAFRT ATTEHAR] AR ATdE e FAfd, T THE FAHR
ATgFRaH! TJAH GiKT FTALT, THT T F¥eredl THIEHN] AALATITR] AN F¥I( qMacd Fqaedrad AfAfd, w1l Agqal geaedl
THTEERICTH] ATNT oIl AGAT ATATT, FHATT AAT TAT SIS FEIeAl FIAHT AT TG ATH(, FAAT Tt Teereel Fawh ATTHTH
AT AT qfafg ATTHA FOAI, AT Gratd TFedl FAHI TATGRRAIS] AT =1 GGt qrafa, FrETss Iaeandcd awear
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PTAH] THTAFTIATH AT GEANTT AHISTF FAREI e Atafe, e Sear fasy T aeataesasr oy garsrer amn faar afafq
TS TRTH B | FoATAF ATAITTE T TR FodATeld TRT ST-AAITEedTe qU ThT [Auiaesed Fraraa-es afq aog Jamas
FIHT FATITIAATE F=aTeleh AT THET TSR] RIS TS(Ah! [qebTa TRUB debehl TR0 Tfafugsadl aredr a=arad qraiaar
frafaa ST g7 Jurmeire! faera TRUHT FHHRT RIST =g | ATRE (AT JUTerers 99 TAEHER aarsd arasd/l gl
JUITST T@TITETT (Information System Audit) ¥ #TH @TIRIETTT (Labour Audit) T ¥ W@TILIETHaTE SATSTHT FRATEEH IR T
Y YT YRTAETH] FIATEIT T AGRAT TEhl G | faebra Sebebl Gorem Fraforedl &A1 Seae gaiee SIaH a0 T T STees
TRIETT T AT STAT FUSTHT Y AETHT AT Disaster Recovery Site T THT TATIAT TRTHT & | [qba Sebebl fafaa aar 3+
FH FRATR] FedF CH FHAREEAE e AR T T TRF FHANGEETE Flehl Tlhd T FIAD! [dhd TRTHA
Duel Control Mechanism T&eT @ | faeera s wod wus fafaey afafaesesr faazor v 5w afafaess e srewsr faavo g
TR 9eqd TRuE F |

(%) A@TIIETT Al

T dHHT goarad AT [qUs H] FASTHAA] Foarad A [Hd qUesy 5 T ARG A@MIRIE [q9E J7E
AT AT ITHT AT Ao B U ATARE A@TIIET ATAT Teehl B | AT T@TIRIE0 qHfqe ATide audr qeqrad
TR A@IIET AT (Audit Plan) TAR T, J@IITETRA T BT @I FTIGAHT AATSUHT T/ FRATEE
I FHTEAT TR GIRTHS FaH ATed ATLATIAATS M (4, T AL dbdre AL TaT UL TR GiTaaAr
I TZURT FaT / B TTETERT BATIT T/ THTPT THTIHT GHIET T AT o fTorewepl AfsTerg T8 F=eTeres ArATqeTs STerer
TR, (T S ebl AT e (i e uTeATE HE T AT IR e TG A LTI AATS AE A NI, Sfebehl ehTH IR ATE [T (AT H e, Rerea o,
STereaT, THTIHIRAT T FITEE AAeTve 9T/ THTHT I GHIET T GoalTersh AHITeTs ATa9TH GhTe 6, Fehepl TTITqH
farir [aa=uTerT T LT F=aTeleh AT THET TTTaad T T, T@TILNETS [Tkl ATNT [T T AR FIaes T Teh]

T | A@TIIE FTHITHRT T5% AT o 092, /50 AT © Ygh Tdh! & |

(@) TfeH ageqmI= qHfa

foeprar SopaT ToaTerer o1 faHe AU FATTRAT ToaTas A fqUvs ATy UsH I, oA a9 IHE 99 ¥
Sifgd eI a9 yHE e qiad @ T SEH Faerad AT H G | A9 A Abbl Thlgd (Haerd
ATbebl W, Haed T JALENACT ATd BN T9 ATHIT AGHTIET Freivd FGHgs Aed: ol AT Hied ey,
e WG, qeedl Gl SEH, SATee? SaH o aded! Sgaess! qfe=e T 91 Afad, JAiiges, qd-aiis
qMitiep TAT TR AR giqaed Ug Huues ST& ICAAP faae, ALCO Minute, Risk Report, Stress Test, &@Tl TeI&T01 Gfefeaam
o1fe AT Ak T T SGW HIH0THT AT ATG9TF ARG T T B8 T4 | 19 forebray Sepept sxagraan fHfeq
SREHH! ¥R, AMaH e+ &9dl T FaH FaeaTITeHT AT TaR TRTH AaTd Aa<desd! Hardd FqHT TRaarsd T
T 1 N qATAAT AR ATk ATHTTHET TR TG T A9l 6L Aehepl (MG TUINTH Ara9des I faq s ®rd
T e | ATE a9 3099,/ 50 AAAT AMGH AT ATHITH T5F Y Teb aThH G |

(¥T) FH=TET Far raar qrAfa

foeprar SepaT Tommarsk off WA ghTIS T FATSTRTHT THE FIFRET Afdehd e, J@r q47 fad a9 g9@ qeer dan
ST AT (9T IHE 93 9ad T8 Ush HHA a7 qradr ATArd TEhl G | T Frafael sH=1 JaT1 HaAvaerd
HTITET To(AT, FHEATIR! i fehra Tl AT, THT AL TSATHE FRAT TR TF [ARTEel b T, FHATRTS T
Tt Far giaem aatea favomr ua e 78 dsaras afafa awe gfqaes o 99 1de )

(o) F¥afa EIRR0r Ao gl FiHfa

[T AT F=aTedeh 21, AR T8 ASSUH] HATTHAHT F=aTereh A1 & o AT T Compliance & AML/CFT fa+RT
TG qEE qrAd @ T Teh TR STETReT A aeedt afafa T g | a9 atafae e SEar e afesr aramr
forar T SFaeaTe! (ARTETT 9T AFTHA T, TMeeh e Ggia a1 T AT FFedHl g FeaTad (harehard T Jiehl
fr=rer @nfn Aifq frafor =, Feafa e@reeer fAarer U9 0%y, FRfd @il AR MEsEer 093 T Ut e
Fepepl 39T, (GO A Q% AR TUHT FrEEd] THIET T, T GEIwaHT AT¥e Alid, Hrafarg T THaeeh T
ferareor Ty ATAYTE FARET AT Foarerss AMAfG qHeT T¥RTT T T F1A TEg | A1fIF a6 09% /50 AT TR STETH0T
frameor e atafasr doF ¥ TaE ahE B |

faeTa Sepepl AT I JUTearg 99 FAEERT TATSH Ie9dd HATATI TeHT qIRTAHT Jedi@d ATHIaes Ted 9%

PRI T8 SHERT FHT SAHHRT RIS =6 |
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ates fagere afafa

Feafq I SEedmad |tafa

gfvg Ftafa

9R9fq |rafdT

FAT STAT FrATT

AT glaty Afata

AT glaty AT AfAfa

FINTT ATHINT S ITRRNIE FFel qrafa
ferem afafa

SIEH ALY G

ferepTar Sepept Fraul AMfafa s fafie e sifames srariHied grar ¢ fafae iafafaesaT Sifaresed! e, Tearse a7 Haerd+
TE TTHT LT GHIAHT T T, | (b1 Sebel AT MATafie® Hrar=ae Tal ATEq= T80 SaHesd! 3o Hecash! ard qie=, ArT=
T A T WH G | Irad AEGH FaedTIqH A 3¢ SGH FaLTIT F3=A] AN TR AMGH ST [ qar Ggaiesl
FRATEIT TRTH T |

Sifew srawara Wfd T ytRaTedr qAEE FrarEaaT Wi T qer wfuer fGee SEer guee atafaar Fied @ = s
fafq s=aeia Sife SFaeara Afafq ¥ S@raereTs afafq qar e e qerd qMMae T | giafd, & F &l arara
ST ATHTAES AR [FhE Sebel Al STEH SHTEITI YUl TTAT Tl 3 | A7 afafaes W siifegw sqgeame Hifa, agfa qar
TIAATS ¥ A FATSH, TAqT/Fefaa Aifd qar qthar asiar T+, Siad AaeTaTH: Jqasdes, GEhIaar ™, Stress Testing,

FATAT, TR, TSRS AT, TR (AT ¥ 7 Aeca Ul ST THirgd GHeesds Jfad aaeqrad qrafqar qHrem I
fofrerT etfiT et T rEwaT Wl G |

(%) Foll SNMEH FFETIA
FAT FGH FT FAT TERIATHT Jod@ TTHT ITAEEPT ATAAT T TG (o1 g FAIfad ARTers g | hofl
HGHHT THATIHT AaTHT 0T fqbd Sber fafirer Hifq, Hefirees qar 78 s@aft=g" W 3 | & i,
Sifew erawarae fifq, w1 wqelr Afd/ FEfEfa; Product Papers TV A7 wITe T awafead fifq fawese fasra &
AT BT AMGH ATEATTTRT ATATEROT TATTHT & | (qebra AbHT THATAHRIE b SGH ATEIT T bl goerer
faaRT, ol T (q9RT,  SifeH SFa=am (99RT, 911 Al ([q9Nes and el & |

FABI THIAT SAM@H (Concerntration Risk), T HUT aT ATTEHT F¥allwad MBI FHE (SOL), & HAl ATTATH
& S AIAT ATl oIl AM@Hep! [IRTAT, &Y% HUTH! Internal Credit Rating, 11 F(a&T JaTH T+ T T qAT TR
FAFTIF] [aEqd [y, SATIRE FAT [ HUEwd! FTAT ATATHA / AATHT ST THAT AT FHoIl SGH AL
T RTH |

(@) T S AT

FTH THAHT q1g TeReH ANTGHEE HeH YT FAGH T Teh &7 | ATAT a7 JqHe A2 FhaAT, SAlch T JOMET aT Fehebl
FATRT FIAAT FFel S GHATET AT TEATEd] TATAANE & ArITEad SREHATE g1 AT TTHT a1 STy T
TRUHT B | ToATAT SAMGH AT, AGGTIAT g AR, Tl ATERAdT, HTicTeh TATARAT &7fe, BTATe=I=THT FqHedm ¥
AT STV, ICTTEEHT F@THIEF STEH, EFHes, IHAEEHT AAFAAT a7 (a0 IHAT [SSeAes T ATIR AT ATAH
T 98T T4 BRI g GIHS, | TAAHRT ANGH Taearqd e, A9e FISAICHE Fh(d, e T4 Frafa Joreirer! g,
JEEENT TMH b HITEUSH] A=A, ATAREEATR! T, FATHE (Hebrd qom fqepra sepept areiieep i, gFpaEs

R}

N

T WU AT Ui FfR=raarer faera S ged T qeAIfad e SiaHe SadT Seqad feataer @nfr qamw
S

(A7) TAR FE@H FAFTLITIH

AR SREH AT SATTaR, {3t [af w7 2%, FHITSIaw A T T AW AU AR (aid STHIUH HaR A aT
AT TS FaTE T g SNGHATS TATS 3, | (T SSebepl AefTete AfATe oTR STaH Aife T g=redrg Tred T4 i T
THT B | fapTer bt gg IR SNGH SAa=aTq e (AR T @] TH B | TR 97 aRear Siad (e 3 e
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fAfeT faerar Sepwr @vafa gor aifacr sxawaras afafa (ALco) @t &, sg fafaa sawr So@ a9 faem Swer awafa g
FTfacae feafd, JrhTed, samsiey aivadd, faeefl Hereedn fafaaa @ aiadad Sca g1 SaHesH! MR, GAP analysis %1
FHEAT TAT ST AT e IS AT Ta, |

ARl SIEH SqFeIT

farepTar Sfehet Te TR STTIcaesaTs ded T+ TaT avet (i Saee "¥ed aifad feafqes aeerdn Siiaw e e, | Tt
SGAATE b AT faiTa FRATEEHT Teh HeA FITGHP TIHT (57 | TRAT FIGH ARATIAA (qehTe SAehebl (axiTd HALATATE
gfcTebel THTE AT AT T T [T Sebebl &THT AT I Hed T4s; | fashrg dehepl S=a aa@aaqel qRadn SiaH
AT AFAT T AIHT TRATT FEIl TR qeedl Faedrad T bl S | TaHT  FFIq q47 qaed Faedras
atafd (ALCO) Fecadul sIfHarT Tew T | fare bl a¥erd HeaTsd, AT ¥ SadTdd @l (g9 Awaeid eahl ot
FfTae T T T IR A AT A Aol ATl CRR, SLR/ Credit to Deposit Ratio / Liquidity Ratio ST&T SaTde® faera
ebel TTEAT T TTTHT JAR=d T I=o HaI=AT RAifdg T Haedr fHarsus g |

() I TGHES

farepTar Sepet ATRAT SF@IfaE PRaTEATTES e derse aT fTtST GFaR SifEH, FIAT T AAASAAT GEIRT STEH, 7
FATIT GFEAT SIfEH dEd I SEHesds G0 EaeId T8 I9IT g | "I GTEaE GEiead SiaHes
AT T AT FH1EA [q9WT Jor F=rers diAfd &d AT9d Fda qaid, HTT aFed] SaH SAaedraqe amnT
FAA [TA, ATIAAT TR SGH AALATITR] AT HFAI [F9RT T F=Tedh FrAfd &aT Gl a0 (e
FrEAT qiafd AGRT e AARAT B | AT SM@HET TEAT Ud AaATIT THebT AT (qepre et fafaer fafmar yo
Td =T FHARIESATS (TRIETT JaTT T TRTHT 3 |

<

TETTb FFIAIHT THIIHT

79 faepra Sbdr Jar e faear T et fafafuseorer smaren smew a9 fawra Swer vq.30 giaerd SR T ated
FoHATATHT Y&l AT Ffaee fafAdge Aelva qa@radT Geaiedd $IIes T4 ATetadl G | FISHS! HeTARATAHIH FH T ar
FIATAT e AT TS fafdesr R0c0 @R Ao diere faxira faawo ferar @ 3 |

q & ThT ol ¥ HRIE 0 AE
3 qT ad 9% FRIS % A
3 gg HATHT (HUTHE) 35 A 99 FAR
¥ FHATY FET 33

JTITTT I AT ATATAAT

[CEILACE T RS IR AT q4qn Wﬂﬂ?’lﬁr’ (Corporate Governance and Compliance) 31T¢lf-ﬁ AT 2fE ¥ weT 3= qreafAearAT e
ATTHT T | FaepT Sobel ARATTA FUHTR! TEIRIHT AUTA A b, FFAAT ATALRPT AT, AU o 1€, T Web THR==A
fafaee et fraasrd fAemaeeare ST 9uer e qa1 aiRTaess! qu FTHT GTEAT T8 ATEREHT T WA THITH AT
IR THA (IR TS ATH B | PR THU FHARTESS AT T ATHAR ATl aeaT T FIATaaTH ATSTH AT
FoATed q9T AT &R fafa= afAfq 7 I7-JiATtaes q0d BRATRTA TE® S | AIaqe] Haedidh FTHT 3 [eau T 2
HEI THEATEEATS JTIH TavaTe FHTETT ITHHT AT Compliance and AML-CFT IRt afey @s=aar el @ | e Sber qeqor
FIee TR FAHT ToATAT TR FLANTT FUMEAATS 3¢ T3 oo AT, FHATIE, SAREAES, TAATERI (Medhdies amad
EIUT RFATATEGR] (el TRET T qad T 97 Iqag @bl @ | A1d, ANy fadesar afq a9 fasrer S q=amrd qemas aam
RRTATeRT T2l T oI%F T¢I TqE g4 S BT TSTeeells [avawd I =Teray |

gl




/ alfs@s gicacar
3l a. R09%/0C0O

d3Adl ATIT
79 fqeTE SFET I Wt AT GednT qATST & q¥Iul STRET HeTIHaes, qEhad] qa7 J9d AXFRE Twg AHaes

fataegyfa a=aras afAfqs ahdre | alfad ATHR h T =6 |

TR THE FIAFIET AT AT Aehebl THIU ATkt TN FHATIEE, THAH F@TIIEAT T GFI T (AT Teaate T TaT
TAAUHHT ACINAFIe qAT ST IATERHN FTTHT THTERRT Fal JaTe THAT T, AT, TH. 81 TF FMed [drade amaa [
ST TATATTEEdTs TPRICHS TIHAT TAGHE TATSET TARSIT T T AT SIHT AhaATs TedNT TATST THIU T oGFa@dTeT
afq # Elfew AR <h T4 |

eI

TH 9 19

fafa: 050 9w 39
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fadcp 1A dobopt AdER
i 2T

fAg  afvaredare yWEERT aersHel @it a9 faerg ded fafwe wedr, Sud ¥ HEdl @iaee SerdadH o
B | far@ Sobet Foara=aT (e AIeTTes Well e Aqfasr arer (e drern, wfear w@fmm f7ag dremn, A 98 a=a ardrn, #=17
ST e @TdT, AT qRid T A, A e g @, TRAT T g @, 9T qedr @ Jewes W e J
ATRTT TEH B |

Fe q9T QI

FATART ATAITHAT T TTEehebl TNT THITH [THT SFebel AT A Sebebl (HeaTepl GRfafeT @R Foll TaT8 e ATeEH o |
foepra Sber IcareAelier &, I JUAT AYRTAT W AHeBl bl NHIATS TATHEATAT TGN T JAT g HITAT AT FAE
TATE & ATSREH @ | UEFESH AN T ATAIAHRATATS WA TS (qeh1q Sebel ATHT (AR @l HATTdgsare GHT=AT STHT
Teferaauur & &1, Afear SHT P, qEET For, AR fadr e T gEEner fdr w0 ¥ AT qONd FS yaw T4 ArEEs
=l

99T (Remittance) Eﬁﬁﬂ

forepT SrepepT AT YA GTeae TIRAT AT FaT AR BT I9TT BT 3200 TUE/ JI-USVTHRT JATIEIEEHTS [GqT0 a7 JaTe
TRREHT B | THAT AHSHTR T FATUTEES S9Th Ueh TITAATE Aehl TATAAT ThH TS, T T T @IATAT STFAT T FaeT 9T &S |
THET A TRAT faebr S Aqrher fafae=r 39 Fer fayuor a1 qarded FFHEsH Ueirdd! STA] U U9 a1 Iqeed TRISe ATUh
g

ABBS gfaem

79 fabTa ST AMehesals [H:ATedk TIHT UF Q@I Ah APl AETATE ATRTAT (oI T9T 7 Teh ETHT &l GIATHT Aol TETaTe
THH STHAT T FraaT 97T Any Branch Banking Service WaTH T8 TEREH g |

AP ST YRIET/Connect IPS & RTGS

faeprar Sepet AT foerafey aTew fAfAaeE T FehTdT T fara SHHT @TdT Tehl Aekewdle (Haad g SHlesd =Madl a7 de a1
forfrer eaATRT @IATHT YT TATATR I GiGem Y& T 9rd 97 faaiey ers fataaes foeafts aaer s e a9 qar
fairar SeaTewe! = foeqafey T Afaar Ya= T AT G | A=AReF (T LRI qauT A=Td Connect IPS /RTGS AR T
FehehT TMEhEeel URH TR ATATET AT BTG UteAebd JATT T ATHAT GIATAE AT b T [axiTd FETHT T@ehT GIarar g8 ¥
FH TR T T AT TR G |

Y fev Sy dar

ekl HRT T ATIITHATATS ST TET (G Fbed ATHT Fel M@l FIATATEE AR JAT Araslier (Tl faaa r a8 @
UTeshewerl [AarT ford, Srehebl SRTAT e AT FIbT foheaT ShTAT T Flaem Jar T8 ATEEH G |

f-smear (c-AsBA) gfear

forepTa SiopehT ATeshewel [T~ FTavIEeeh! Taslad TIAT Fhya IR ARTITRT HHAT fF-3T94T (Centralized Application for ASBA Based

Issuance) JUTET HThd AT FHFI-IESR] JARHT ATIE (47 Fiehra |

qAH a1

o (o Hal ~ ~ d X N VN ~ ; c N
FAUTcHSD dlbF %—?f, UTehhl AT dIT HI KR! AT ATATE HETASY Mq [dhlH dbe] ATHAT Eﬁé MET bATAT odTd b AT
FSATATHT TR G, | BT [ThTE Sebel FTSHISIHT S, TR IRH GATTATIE, ATATILHT FHIIATAT, TrERTH] AN T T, TAEH

&, FAIqade! ARG ¥ Gg=d qTEEwde Sth 9a1 Ja18 TREH § ¥ It dal F ATEl FATAIeeH FHd [q&qR T (e
SFFF AT W G |

sfqe F1E/ATM FfaaT/ Contactless Card

ferg wowT gfafimr wEzes Mo, Sfes & ae TEXEHT FqRTel T AT FRIARATS (Hacaied T qUTe GEHHT A1 AT e
deber fatae fefStee iy IUHTUES Tomumer o ATH 3 | 79 fqam Fber Brar (VISA) Feafeger g=aar fdg Chip Based Visa
Card, Contactless Card YATTHT <ATUHI B | fTHd Sehel 050 TG HATTTFT G9TehT (R~ Y9 TITHT AR ATM HfaT F==rer-ram
TEeT Bl | (aepTer ehepl UTeehesed AT (VISA) Taafdsiie arag el avqu ATM 3w ATaa o e e ard fafae saraenfas
FHESATE F& 9T JaAT @RE T AhAT THT FTSHDT T Alh a1 TEH G |
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forehT SehepT UMEhEeel ATHAT WIATHT UK FRIEATR AT GIATHT Tl GIoaTdedl SMS HAThHT TN [od, TEHTZ Feiehl ATHT AT
TH.UH g kg e JAT @IATHT Teehl HIoaTd &¥, TWEHUE &, AT (e b Jar o S a7 faxii FEaTHT Tehl sl
QTATHT TSl THH TR, -FATHT T TR, Utility Payment SRTIICTRT fafaer g% WIATEA I T HFIEIATE THA qoblel
Td Tesl ARFIETE PRIER G THHT AT [T Sebed AT TS Hiamger by (AT feoly a2an) ¥ ©d. TH. ug Ja1 G=ara-ar
TATTH g | TRET feol g U5 IoRAH T TAaegRT HieaTed T T I9918e gordT FAT T+ Afeheg, |

Online Account Opening System

faeTr T Online ATEAHATE @TAT @led T ARAT FATATHT ATTH B, | FARFN S[AGF THATE I Online ATEHZIRT AT farspre
AT GIAT Gl ATITET AT Ik WIATHT &I+ ThH ST I TG0 Fieheg, |

Tt war el

foehTer Sehel ST UTesheedtTs faael HaT fafwaedr Jfaar yam T4 ATCH o | faerg et ferere, S, Tarameas, qrardas,
AR AFATSS AR MG FATAIETATE eheed AT qradr I T TaESA |

QR Code

faeprar et TR e FRIARATS TedTed T9 AEFEEATE QR Merchant T AfFdT ITAe TRTSE ATTH! B | FaehT=T el ATHT FEATTA
7 AR Ueheedrs qie=md Aledel Unique Quick Response Code BT IT 4T YT < IATTH! B | faebra SebebT Uecheee (afiae
FE JAT HAT GG LT STTRTAID] ATNT G FETAT o1 Frataerl TATTERT Quick Response Code ATHT STTHTAT T4 Ao T QR Code
BT AITIT TehT I, | [THTd SehebT TMEhedl Fonepay / Nepal Pay T QR Merchant 5% 3ThHAT SAadTIIe HRIARATS 97 Tgol TATg
TS |

Hfge 1S Fhear

e faebra Sebel 1fde I R09R /50 W HUTAH! iy &FHT ¥ AAT fASrHarateasr AT Hige FEH TEATT TWH G | AT
#fee 1S fav Tedeear Higa FE AR Gitg THT & AT JATHT THHFT TR (a9 Sherrs ATGF T¥et freqramaran faw=

o FaeT (HASUa g |
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ke fdopa dob ferfdcsdt

FFIAT T, R0%3 I THT Q0% A=A FoaTas ATATTR! IqaeTal Gg IJoot@
g1 U [qarurese! Al derTa faaru
Q. 9IR S HUHl HU SThd FUHT IR TET, AT AP dH{ebd Hed, AL SR Tha gIAT 0T |1 a9 FFIAT T T

P THAT THH T TET AT TR AUAE |7 9AR [eehT TT P 9T Tehl TehH q9T SThd HUHT PR arqd TehH [l Tkl
T Grepl faawor

AT I R09% /50 T FARTAT FAUM AR TR TRTHT G |

3. fand e AT HAT T AW TETAF FFIADR] FRIARE] T T A1 ATTIH THPT ATAT Teeh! EAiqapl TARraaiee
faepTer S T AT WETAF FEIAT AT AT fAtaager Tl YRIqHT THT a9 qaae fafae daresnr I TR 3 |

3 HHT JAT DT FETTF FFIATA ATIF TTHT FHI T THE FRIGRES T AT AATTH HFIATRT FRIATHAT ATTH Bl Heedaol
RIEChE

9 foqepra sbet i o 2092 /050 AT ek qAT (AT Fear qea=dT UH, 093 AT “@” a(ehT faiid GEATel T HTIEe Tl T
faeprer depept T FEOAT Afvwr Ffred fafaeed FA Jur SEwfE afedt v @ fafra FREres T aewew g1 a9
gfqaael fafae qaeear S T FRTeT dTed I Hecdqu TR qUH & |

o ac d o~ S o~ o < N o
¥, [ ANIR TTHT hFTIh SATARHA AU AT pHATATS FHTSd AU RT ST RIT

9T THTH |

y. faa enfde T TR FeTdd AT TRIIEESd (AUl TATHT W@ Hcaeh] (a0 T HFITh! IR FHRIEAT (98e G
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p.L.B.G. Associates

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Shareholders of
M/s Garima Bikas Bank Ltd.
Lazimpat, Kathmandu

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Consolidated Financial Statements of Garima Bikas Bank Ltd.
(hereinafter referred to as “the Bank”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the
Group”), which comprise Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at Ashadh 31,
2080 (July 16, 2023), Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss, Consolidated Statement
of Other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the Consolidated Financial Position of the Group as at Ashadh 31,
2080 (July 16, 2023), its Consolidated Financial Performance and its Consolidated Cash
Flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Handbook of the Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Nepal (ICAN), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the ICAN’s Handbook of the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period,
which were addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon. We do not provide separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described in the Basis for Opinion
section, we have determined the matters described below as the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
Consolidated Financial Statements.

P.L.R.G. Associates

Chartered Accountants
mailtoplrg@gmail.com, +977-1-4011079, 4011080, P.O. Box: 5638, New Plaza Marg, Putalisadak, Kathmandu
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Our assessed key audit matters and how we addressed them are outlined below:

S.N. Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response
1. Interest Income

Ref. Note no. 4.29 and accountlrﬁgohcles to the financial statements.
The Bank has total interest income | We applied following procedures in
of Rs. 10,683,204,016 including Rs. | respect of verification of interest income:
9,323,728,199 on loans and

advances to customers. » Understanding of the core banking

. Interest income has been software of the Bank how interest rate

recognized on accrual basis as per on loans and advances has been
the interest recognition guidelines implemented in system.

of Nepal Rastra Bank. Recognition | » Whether interest income on advances
of interest income on bad loans is automatically generated in the CBS
involves the  judgments on system.

calculating the net realizable value | » Review of accrual and recognition
of loans and advances. As an interest income whether relevant
automated system is yet to be used NFRS and the NRB norms have been
to suspend recognition of income followed by the Bank for the same.
based on the overdue status of the | » Review and verify the transactions
loan and fair value of the collateral relating to manual debit or credit of
as well as review of fair valuation of interest in the system.

collateral on a regular basis, |» Understanding as to how the Bank’s
manual intervention might be management monitors their business,
required in the interest income analyze its credit portfolio and the
recognition process and hence interest income thereon.

create a risk of improper application

of the guidelines and determination | Accounting policies and recognition of
of fair value of the collateral. interest income has been considered

acceptable.

As this may have effect on the

recognition of the interest income

by the Bank, we have considered it

| as a key audit matter.

o | Investment Securities Valuation

| Ref. Note no. 4.8 and accounting policies to the financial statements.

The Bank has total investment
securities of Rs. 14,918,548,503 as
at Ashadh 31, 2080 classified into
two different categories  as
Investment securities measured at
amortized cost and Investment in
equity measured at fair value
through  other  comprehensive
income, which in  aggregate
represent 16.73 % of the total
assets of the Bank.

Classification of investment into
different categories as Investment

We applied following procedures in
respect of Investment verification:

» Review of accounting policies adopted
by the Bank based on Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards and the
Directives issued by NRB and
compliance of the same.

Evaluation of management’s
assessment to categorize investments
classified into different categories as
Investment securities measured at
amortized cost and Investment in

Y
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securities measured at amortized

cost and Investment in equity
measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income

warrant management judgement
and it impacts on valuation of
investment securities and
impairment allowance.

Duc to the percentage of volume

over total assets and the
requirement of management
judgment for measurement of

impairment allowance, hence this
has been considered as key audit
matter.

equity measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income.
Verification of valuation of investment
on sampling basis in reference to its
cost and quoted market price as the
case may be.

Verification of impairment allowance
provided for different investments in
commensurate with NFRSs and NRB
Directives.

Accounting policies, classification,
valuation, and impairment allowances
for the investments are considered
acceptable.

Impairment of Loans and Advance

S

Ref. Note no. 4.7 & 4.7.4 and accounting policies to the financial statements.

The Bank’s advances to the
customers represent 69.49 % of its
total assets at the end of year under
review and are stated at Rs.
61.9569 billion which is net of
provision of Rs. 1.6043 billion.

As per carve out on NFRS 9
provided by ICAN for impairment of
loans, the Bank has assessed and
measured impairment loss on loans
and advances as higher of amount
derived as per norms prescribed by
Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss
provision and amount derived as
per carve out issued by ICAN. The
provision against advances was
identified as a key audit matter as it
involves a considerable degree of
management judgment and
compliance with Directives and
Circulars issued by Nepal Rastra
Bank.

in
loss

We applied following procedures
respect of verification of loan

provision:

» Review of borrower’s files, which
includes evaluation of borrowers’
repayment behavior, assessment of
financial strength based on the
available financial statements,
adequacy of  security/collateral,
obtainment  of required legal
documents, CIC reports, and
compliance with prudential
regulations.

Business sites visit of the borrowers
on sampling basis.

Review of IT system to provide loan
loss provision based on overdue
payments.

On sampling basis, verification of
accuracy of provision against non-
performing loan calculated by the IT
system and manual calculation
sampling basis.

Evaluation of appropriateness of
subjective judgement made by the
management for performing loans’
borrowers.

Review of Board’s evaluation and
decisions on loans.

S




Based on the above audit procedures
performed, loan loss provision made by
the Bank is considered acceptable.

Information Technology

Considering the nature, complexity
and volume of business and
transactions, the Bank has used
different system including core
banking system and management
information system (MIS) based on
information technology.
Transactions of the bank have been
electronically carried out and its

We applied following procedures in
respect of information technology:

N

r

Review of control relating to the
information system of the Bank
whether it is as required by the
relevant NRB guidelines.

Understanding controls over input,
processing and output of the existing

/ alfiEe afcdes
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data and information of the Bank
has been digitally stored. It has to

IT system.
Review of accuracy and correctness of

ensure strong internal control information/ reports generated by the
relating to IT and MIS. Various relevant system on sampling basis.
reports including the financial | » Review of report of Information

System Audit and implementation
status of recommendations thereon.

statements are highly dependent on
such digitally stored data and other
related system.

We have considered this as a key
audit matter as any lapses in the
control system including input,
processing and output or any wrong
extractions of data may result in the
wrong reporting of the data to the
management, shareholders, and
regulators.

Based on the above audit procedures
performed, control over the information
technology prevailing in the Bank has
been considered adequate.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of subsidiary.
Financial statements of Garima Capital Ltd. (subsidiary) and other financial information
has been audited by other auditor whose report has been furnished to us by the
management and our opinion on the financial statements in so far as it relates to the
accounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary are based solely on the
report of the other auditor.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those charged with Governance for the
consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting standards (NFRSs)
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless

@;;
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management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations or has no
realistic alternative but to do so, those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if individually
or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in
accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
We have determined to communicate following matters in accordance with the
requirements of NRB Directives, Companies Act, 2063, BAFIA,2073 and other regulatory
requirements:
L. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of audit.
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I1. Accounts and records of the Bank have been maintained as required by law.

I1I. Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss, Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, and Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books
of accounts maintained by the Bank.

IV. Capital fund, risk bearing fund and the provision for possible impairment of
assets of the Bank are adequate as per the Directives issued by Nepal Rastra
Bank.

V. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the

explanations given to us, the Board of Directors, the representative or any
employee of the Bank has not acted contrary to the provision of law relating
to accounts nor caused direct loss or damage to the Bank deliberately or acted
in a manner that would jeopardize the interest and security of the Bank.

VI. Operations of the Bank are within its jurisdiction.

VII. The Bank has not acted in a manner to jeopardize the interest and security of
the depositors and investors.

VIII. The Bank has a centralized core accounting system and details received from
branches of the Bank though the statements are independently not audited,
were adequate for our audit, and

IX. We have not come across any fraudulence in the accounts, so far as it
appeared from our examination of the books of account.

@%M )

Prakash Lamsal, FCA
Senior Partner

P.L.R.G. Associates
Chartered Accountants

UDIN No: 231221CA00154iZTJl

Date: 2080/09/05
Place: Kathmandu




Garima Bikas Bank Limited
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As on 31st Ashad 2080
Group Bank
| Particulars _______ Notes | 31Ashad 2080 | 32 Ashad 2079 _ 31Ashad 2080 | 32 Ashad 2079 |
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 4.1 4,589,230,815 5,224,336,963 4,602,873,647 5,223,856,272
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 2,961,796,053 1,998,862,930 2,961,796,053 1,998,862,930
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 43 15,000,000 520,000,000 - 500,000,000
Derivative financial instruments 4.4 - - - -
Other trading assets 4.5 127,347,288 125,694,773 - -
Loan and Advances to B/Fls 4.6 2,973,799,200 2,845,675,474 2,973,799,200 2,845,675,474
Loans and advances to customers 4.7 61,957,868,581 58,047,616,193 61,956,931,002 58,046,661,337
Investment securities 4.8 14,931,153,338 9,920,183,335 14,918,548,503 9,909,527,832
Current Tax Assets 49 - - - -
Investment in subsidiaries 410 - - 123,900,000 123,900,000
Investment in Associates 411 - 5,964,682 - 5,964,682
Investment property 412 187,268,784 36,514,800 187,268,784 36,514,800
Property and equipment 413 676,043,702 787,967,040 641,084,021 748,791,935
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 4.14 101,423,735 102,087,417 100,994,618 101,487,075
Deferred tax assets 415 48,158,347 13,033,969 32,452,227 -
Other assets 416 681,735,178 501,181,053 663,159,838 489,284,270
Total Assets 89,250,825,021 80,129,118,628 89,162,807,892 80,030,526,606
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 417 2,104,520,294 2,035,638,564 2,104,520,294 2,035,638,564
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 418 - 807,904,362 - 807,904,362
Derivative Financial instruments 4.19 = o = =
Deposit from customers 4.20 76,946,689,730 68,395,870,950 76,964,158,230 68,410,212,441
Borrowings 421 14,583,333 22,916,667 14,583,333 22,916,667
Current Tax Liabilities 49 51,439,326 21,334,973 57,194,383 25,313,880
Provisions 422 - - - -
Deferred tax liabilities 415 - - - 1,053,519
Other liabilities 423 1,259,701,656 1,176,163,937 1,224,115,196 1,136,728,408
Debt securities issued 424 995,089,258 994,221,509 995,089,258 994,221,509
Subordinated Liabilities 425 - - - -
Total liabilities 81,372,023,598 73,454,050,962 81,359,660,695 73,433,989,350
Equity
Share Capital 4,26 5,187,687,057 4,579,892,402 5,187,687,057 4,579,892,402
Share Premium 4,415,329 92,311,741 4,415,329 92,311,741
Retained Earning 493,519,254 567,121,281 517,658,780 584,442,111
Reserves 427 2,105,258,233 1,346,416,711 2,093,386,031 1,339,891,002
Total equity attributable to equity holders 7,790,879,873 6,585,742,134 7,803,147,197 6,596,537,256
Non-controlling interests 87,921,549 89,325,531 - -
Total equity 7,878,801,423 6,675,067,666 7,803,147,197 6,596,537,256
Total liabilities and equity 89,250,825,021 80,129,118,628 89,162,807,892 80,030,526,606
Contingent liabilities and commitment 4.28 1,243,022,415 1,656,294,386 1,243,022,415 1,656,294,386
Net assets value per share 150.18 143.80 150.42 144.03
As per our report of even date
Keshab Timalsina Anil Regmi Madhav Prasad Upadhaya Govinda Prasad Dhakal Shyam Prasad Basyal CA. Prakash Lamsal

Head- Finance, Accounts Assistant Deputy Chief Executive Officer Chairman Partner, PLRG Associates

&Treasury Department Chief Executive Officer Chief Executive Officer Chartered Accountants
Dr. Ananda Prasad Shrestha Deependra Shrestha Bimal Pandey Sanjeev Dhakal Saraswati Pathak Mukunda Raj Acharya

Director Director Director Director Director Director

Date: 2080/09/04
Place: Kathmandu
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Garima Bikas Bank Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31st Ashad 2080

Group

Bank

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79
Interest Income 4.29 10,686,498,691 7,951,014,509 | 10,683,204,016 7,948,246,751
Interest Expense 430 (7,420,456,724) | (5,352,090,033) | (7,419,215,729) | (5,354,384,198)
Net interest income 3,266,041,967 | 2,598,924,476 | 3,263,988,287 | 2,593,862,552
Fees and Commission Income 4.31 423,576,486 367,028,014 405,599,215 359,306,727
Fees and Commission Expense 432 22,704,389 18,459,993 19,193,220 15,565,920
Net fee and Commission income 400,872,097 348,568,021 386,405,995 343,740,807
Net interest fee and commission income 3,666,914,064 | 2,947,492,496 | 3,650,394,282 | 2,937,603,360
Net Trading Income 4.33 19,053,290 314,312 14,999,815 314,312
Other Operating Income 4.34 34,470,464 69,689,550 33,300,362 113,804,493
Total operating income 3,720,437,818 | 3,017,496,358 | 3,698,694,459 | 3,051,722,165
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses | 4.35 413,271,440 172,760,393 413,271,440 172,760,393
Net Operating income 3,307,166,378 | 2,844,735,965 | 3,285,423,019 | 2,878,961,772
Operating expenses
Personnel Expense 4.36 922,564,201 836,870,661 908,119,677 830,218,927
Other Operating Expenses 4.37 460,090,629 413,691,385 453,988,749 409,142,187
Depreciation and amortisation 4.38 166,328,249 150,949,756 160,439,617 148,360,155
Operating Profit 1,758,183,300 | 1,443,224,164 | 1,762,874,976 | 1,491,240,503
Non operating income 4.39 23,882,078 22,328,494 23,685,948 22,272,052
Non operating expense 4.40 - - - -
Profit before income tax 1,782,065,377 | 1,465,552,658 | 1,786,560,924 | 1,513,512,554
Income tax expense 4.41 520,265,991 469,369,504 521,884,842 483,498,562
Current tax Expenses 553,419,388 473,952,935 553,419,388 473,956,587
Deferred tax Expense/(Income) (33,153,397) (4,583,432) (31,534,546) 9,541,974
Profit for the period 1,261,799,386 996,183,154 | 1,264,676,082 | 1,030,013,992
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the bank 1,263,203,368 1,012,693,162 1,264,676,082 1,030,013,992
Non-controlling interest (1,403,982) (16,510,008) - -
Profit for the period 1,261,799,386 996,183,154 | 1,264,676,082 | 1,030,013,992
Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share 24.32 21.75 24.38 22.49
Diluted earnings per Share 24.32 21.75 24.38 22.49
As per our report of even date
Keshab Timalsina Anil Regmi Madhav Prasad Upadhaya Govinda Prasad Dhakal Shyam Prasad Basyal CA. Prakash Lamsal
Head- Finance, Accounts Assistant Deputy Chief Executive Officer Chairman Partner, PLRG Associates
&Treasury Department Chief Executive Officer Chief Executive Officer Chartered Accountants
Dr. Ananda Prasad Shrestha Deependra Shrestha Bimal Pandey Sanjeev Dhakal Saraswati Pathak Mukunda Raj Acharya

Director Director

Director

Director Director Director
Date: 2080/09/04

Place: Kathmandu




Garima Bikas Bank Limited
Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2080

Group Bank

2078-79 2078-79
Profit for the period 1,261,799,386 996,183,154 1,264,676,082 1,030,013,992
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax

a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Particulars Notes

« Gains/(losses) from investment in equity instruments
s et faivale 4 10,775,826 (198,864,982) 10,775,096 (198,861,690)

» Remeasurement of gain/loss on sale of shares - - - -
+ Gains/(losses) on revaluation - o - -

« Acturial gain/(losses) on defined benefit plans (17,345,764) (504,433) (17,345,764) (504,433)
+ Income tax relating to above items 1,970,981 59,810,824 1,971,200 59,809,837
Net other comprehensive income that will not be (4,598,956) (139,558,590) (4,599.467) (139,556,286)

reclassified to profit or loss
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
- Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge - = = =

« Exchange gains/(losses)(arising from translating
financial assets of foreign operation)

- Income tax relating to above items = = & c
- Reclassify to profit or loss = 5 - -

Net other comprehensive income that are or may be
reclassified to profit or loss

c) Share of other comprehensive income of associate
accounted as per equity method

Other comprehensive income for the period, net of (4,598,956) (139,558,590)  (4,599,467) (139,556,286)
Total comprehensive income for the period 1,257,200,430 856,624,564 1,260,076,615 890,457,706
Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 1,258,604,412 873,134,572 1,260,076,615 890,457,706
Non-controlling interest (1,403,982) (16,510,008) - -
Total Comprehensive income for the period 1,257,200,430 856,624,564 1,260,076,615 890,457,706

As per our report of even date

Keshab Timalsina Anil Regmi Madhav Prasad Upadhaya Govinda Prasad Dhakal Shyam Prasad Basyal CA. Prakash Lamsal
Head- Finance, Accounts Assistant Deputy Chief Executive Officer Chairman Partner, PLRG Associates
&Treasury Department Chief Executive Officer Chief Executive Officer Chartered Accountants
Dr. Ananda Prasad Shrestha Deependra Shrestha Bimal Pandey Sanjeev Dhakal Saraswati Pathak Mukunda Raj Acharya
Director Director Director Director Director Director

Date: 2080/09/04
Place: Kathmandu
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Garima Bikas Bank Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
As on 31st Ashad 2080

Group Bank

| Particulars | 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79

Cash flows from operating activities

Interest Received 10,419,227,161 7,951,014,509 10,415,932,487 7,810,809,383
Fee and other income received 447,458,564 389,356,508 429,285,163 381,578,779
Dividend Received 21,658,148 70,727,527 20,488,046 68,584,811
Receipts from other operating activities - - - -
Interest paid (7,412,259,273) (5,288,377,903) (7,411,018,279) (5,290,672,068)
Commission and fee paid (22,704,389) (18,459,993) (19,193,220) (15,565,920)
Cash payments to employee (837,744,489) (763,269,780) (823,505,796) (759,203,813)
Other expense paid (501,637,445) (19,834,838) (482,105,037) (108,053,715)
Operating cash flows before change in operating assets and liabilities 2,113,998,276 2,321,156,029 2,129,883,362 2,087,477,458
(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets (4,820,462,312) (7,963,077,997) (4,821,201,991) (7,716,535,345)
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank (962,933,123) 155,564,068 (962,933,123) 155,564,068
Placement with bank and financial institutions 505,000,000 (520,000,000) 500,000,000 (500,000,000)
Other Trading assets (1,652,515) (125,694,773) - -
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions (128,123,726) (871,127,982) (128,123,726) (871,127,982)
Loan and advances to customer (4,056,252,299) (6,533,005,743) (4,056,269,575) (6,394,613,520)
Other Assets (176,500,650) (68,813,566) (173,875,568) (106,357,910)
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities 7,812,838,443 4,419,130,454 7,806,589,824 4,433,136,082
Due to bank and financial institutions 68,881,730 (274,068,636) 68,881,730 (274,068,636)
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank (807,904,362) 176,387,954 (807,904,362) 176,387,954
Deposits from customers 8,550,818,781 4,493,783,750 8,553,945,790 4,508,125,241
Borrowings (8,333,333) 22,916,667 (8,333,333) 22,916,667
Other Liabilities 9,375,627 110,719 - (225,143)
Net Cash flow from operating activities before tax paid 5,106,374,406 (1,222,791,515) 5,115,271,196 (1,195,921,805)
Income taxes paid (523,315,035) (395,600,154) (521,538,886) (391,663,804)
Net Cash flow from operating activities 4,583,059,371 (1,618,391,668) 4,593,732,310 (1,587,585,609)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investment securities 4,994,229,496) 354,113,158 (4,992,280,894) 240,871,953
Receipts from sale of investment securities 11,226,579 (3,060,289) 11,226,579 43,197,370
Purchase of plant and equipment (54,404,911) (523,878,881) (52,731,703) (482,114,174)
Receipt from sale of property and equipment 3,478,049 714,295 3,478,049 714,295
Purchase of intangible assets 663,683 (1,791,618) 492,457 (1,191,275)
Receipt from sale of intangible assets - - - -
Purchase of investment properties (150,753,984) 3,365,771 (150,753,984) 3,365,771
Receipt from the sale of investment properties - - - -
Interest received - - - -
Dividend received - - - -
Net cash used in investing activities (5,184,020,079) (170,537,564) (5,180,569,495) (195,156,061)
Cash flows from financing activities
Receipt from issue of debt securities 867,749 994,221,509 867,749 994,221,509
Repayment of debt securities - - - -
Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities - - - -
Repayment of subordinated liabilities & = 3 =
Receipt from issue of shares 519,898,243 996,194,574 519,898,243 996,194,574
Dividend paid (573,364,917) (624,943,977) (573,364,917) (631,612,229)
Interest paid - - - -
Other receipt/payment - - - -
Net cash from financing activities (52,598,924) 1,365,472,106 (52,598,924) 1,358,803,854
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (653,559,632) (423,457,126) (639,436,109) (423,937,816)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Shrawan 01, 2079 5,224,336,963 5,647,587,394 5,223,856,272 5,647,587,394
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held 18,453,484 206,695 18,453,484 206,695
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,589,230,815 5,224,336,963 4,602,873,647 5,223,856,272
As per our report of even date
Keshab Timalsina Anil Regmi Madhav Prasad Upadhaya Govinda Prasad Dhakal Shyam Prasad Basyal CA. Prakash Lamsal

Head- Finance, Accounts Assistant Deputy Chief Executive Officer Chairman Partner, PLRG Associates

&Treasury Department Chief Executive Officer Chief Executive Officer Chartered Accountants
Dr. Ananda Prasad Shrestha Deependra Shrestha Bimal Pandey Sanjeev Dhakal Saraswati Pathak Mukunda Raj Acharya

Director Director Director Director Director Director

Date: 2080/09/04
Place: Kathmandu
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Garima Bikas Bank Limited
Notes to the Financial Statement for FY 2079/80

1. Reporting Entity

1.1 General

1.1

1.2

Garima Bikas Bank Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Bank”) is National Level Development Bank domiciled in
Nepal, registered as a Public Limited Company under Companies Act 2063 and Banking and Financial Institution Act,
2073.The Bank has been formed after the successful merger of erstwhile Garima Bikas Bank Limited, Nilgiri Bikas Bank
limited, Subhechha Bikas Bank limited and acquisition of Sahara Bikas Bank Limited after the approval from Nepal
Rastra Bank. The Bank is a limited liability company having its shares listed on Nepal Stock Exchange. The registered
office of the bank is situated at Kathmandu-02, Das Tower, Lazimpat.

Financial Statements

The Financial Statements of the Bank for the year ended on July 16, 2023 comprises Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss, Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
Consolidated Statement of Change in Equity, Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements comprising summary of Significant Accounting Policies and explanatory notes.

Principal activities and operations Bank

The Bank is providing comprehensive range of financial services including acceptance of deposits, corporate
and retail credit, hire purchase financing, micro credit, trade financing, personal and corporate banking, foreign
currency transactions, issuing of debit/credit cards, internet banking, mobile banking, remittance facilities, dealing
in government securities and treasury related products, agency service and other ancillary services permitted by
Banking and Financial Institution Act, 2073.

Subsidiary

Garima Capital Limited is subsidiary company of the bank and the bank holds 51.20% (i.e. NPR. 123,900,000/- only)
paid up capital. Garima Capital Limited is engaged in Merchant Banking business and provides the service of
Depository Participants and Portfolio Management Service.

2. Basis of Preparation

2.1

2.2

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis and under historical cost conventions except
where the standards require otherwise. The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) developed by the Accounting Standards Board, Nepal (ASB, Nepal)
and pronounced for application by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN). The financial statements
comprise of Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss, Consolidated
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, Consolidated Statement
of Cash flows and Notes to the Accounts on the format prescribed by NRB Directive No. 4 of Unified Directives, 2079.

These Policies have been consistently applying to all the years presented except otherwise stated.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The Bank is required to adopt and apply the accounting policies in conformity with NFRS, the accounting policies are
applied consistently; changes, if any, are disclosed with the financial impact to the extent possible.

The Bank under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately suit its circumstances and
operating environment. Further, the Bank is required to make judgments in respect of items where the choice of
specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could materially affect the financial statements.
This may later be determined that a different choice could have been more appropriate. The accounting policies
have been included in the relevant notes for each item of the financial statements and the effect and the nature of
changes, if any, have been disclosed.
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2.3 Reporting Period and Approval of Financial Statements Reporting Period:

The Group follows the Nepalese financial year based on Nepali calendar starting from 1st Shrawan 2079 and ending
on 31st Ashad 2080. (17th July 2022 to 16th July 2023).

Approval of Financial Statements:

The accompanied financial statements have been approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors in its
297th meeting held on 4th Poush 2080 and have been recommended for approval by shareholders in the Annual
General Meeting.

2.4 Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the functional and presentation currency of the
Bank. The financial information presented has been rounded off to nearest rupee except where otherwise stated.

2.5 Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgements

The management of the Bank, makes accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions which have an impact
on the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses on the financial statements. NFRS requires the
Bank to exercise judgment in making accounting estimates. The management believes that these estimates and
assumptions are reasonable and prudent. These estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. The
significant accounting policies that relate to the financial statements along with the judgments made are described
herein. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.

Where an accounting policy is generally applicable to a specific item, the policy is described within that relevant note.
Description of such estimates has been given in the relevant sections wherever they have been applied.

2.6 Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the bank has the resources to continue in
business for the foreseeable future. In making this assessment, the Board of Directors have considered a wide range
of information relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of profitability, cash flows and
capital resources.

2.7 New Standards in issue but not yet effective

There has been amendment to the Standards issued by IASB and applicability of the new Standards have been
notified for IFRS. But, the amendments and new standards become applicable only when ASB-Nepal pronounces
them. The new Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the financial statements are, “IFRS
9 - Financial Instruments and IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. The Bank will adopt these standards
when they become effective.

Carve-out alternatives issued by ICAN

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) has provided carve-out alternative for Bank and Financial
Institutions under NFRS - 9 until financial year 2080/81 in following cases:

a. Determination of Effective Interest Rate due to Impracticability to determine transaction cost of all previous
years which is the part of effective interest rate.

b. Use of Expected Credit Loss model for impairment of Loans and Advances measured at amortized cost.

2.8 Discounting

The Bank determines amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability using the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts throughout the
expected life of a financial asset or a financial liability to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. If
expected life cannot be determined reliably, then the contractual life is used.

In case where the Group assesses that the transaction amount of a financial asset or a financial liability does not represent
its fair value, the related future cash flows are discounted at prevailing interest rate to determine the initial fair value.

2.9 Limitation of NFRS Implementation

If the information is not available and the cost to develop would exceed the benefit derived, such exception to NFRS

y/
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Garima Bikas Bank Limited

Significant Accounting Policies

3.1

3.2

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these Financial
Statements, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements of the Bank have been prepared under historical cost convention modified to include the
fair valuation to the extent required or permitted under NFRS as set out in the relevant accounting policies, financial
information recorded and reported to comply with the Directive of Nepal Rastra Bank and relevant business practices
followed by the Bank are disclosed separately, where there have been deviations with recognition and presentation
criteria of NFRS.

Basis of Consolidation

The group consists of two Companies Namely, Garima Bikas Bank Limited being its parent company and Garima
Capital Limited as its subsidiary.

a. Business Combination

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method in line with the NFRS 03 "Business
Combination". The consideration transferred in the acquisition and identifiable net assets acquired are measured at
fair value. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognized
in profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except if they are related to the issue of
debt or equity securities.

The consideration transferred does not include amount related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships.
Such amount is generally recognized in profit or loss. Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at
the date of acquisition. If an obligation to pay contingent consideration that meets the definition of a financial
instrument is classified as equity, then it is not re-measured and settlement is accounted for within equity.
Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognized in profit or loss.

b. Non-Controlling Interest
For each business combination, the Bank elects to measure any non-controlling interests in the transferee either:
- Atfairvalue; or
«  Attheir proportionate share of the transferee identifiable net assets, which are generally at fair value.

Changes in the Bank's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners. Adjustments to non-controlling interests are based on a proportionate
amount of the net assets of the subsidiary. No adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognized
in profit or loss.

c. Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities, including structured entities, controlled by the Bank. The Bank controls an entity when
it is exposed to, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee. The assessment of power is based on the Bank’s practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the entity unilaterally for the Banks's own benefit and is subject to reassessment
if and when one or more elements of control change. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
the Bank effectively obtains control. Upon loss of control, the Bank stops consolidation and where any interest in
the subsidiary remains, then such interest is measured to its fair value at the date control is lost and the change in
carrying amount is recognized in the income statement.

d. Loss of Control

Upon the loss of control, the Bank derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, carrying amount of non-
controlling interests and the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity related to the subsidiary. Further
parent's share of components previously recognized in Other Comprehensive income (OCl) is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained earnings as appropriate. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognized in the
profit or loss. If the bank retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value
at the date that control is lost. Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or in accordance
with the Bank's accounting policy for financial instruments depending on the level of influence retained.
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e. Special Purpose Entity (SPE)

A Special Purpose Entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting or similar rights are not the dominant
factor in deciding who controls the entity. Contractual arrangements determine the rights and therefore relevant
activities of the special purpose entity. Special Purpose Entities are generally created to achieve a narrow and
well-defined objective with restrictions around their activities. Special purpose entities are consolidated when the
substance of the relationship between the Bank and the special purpose entity indicates the Bank has power over
the contractual relevant activities of the special purpose entity, is exposed to variable returns, and can use that
power to affect the variable return exposure.

The bank does not have any interest on special purpose entities during the reporting period.
f. Transaction elimination on consolidation

Intra-group balances, transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses (except for foreign currency
transaction gains or losses) arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparing the Consolidated
Financial Statements as per the provision of NFRS 10- Consolidated Financial Statement. Unrealized gains arising
from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the
Group's interest in the investee. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

3.3 Cash & Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent comprise short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and carried at amortized cost. The cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement include cash in hand, balances with banks, money at call
and money market funds and financial assets with original maturity less than 3 months from the date of acquisition.

3.4 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
a. Recognition

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans and advances to customers and balances due to
customers, are initially recognized on the trade date i.e. the date that the Bank becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Investments in equity instruments, bonds, debenture, Government securities, NRB
bond or deposit auction, reverse repos, outright purchase are recognized on trade date at which the Bank commits
to purchase/ acquire the financial assets. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are recognized on trade
date at which the Bank commits to purchase or sell the asset.

b. Classification
The financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value based on business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.
I.  Financial Assets

The Bank classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on the basis of
the Bank’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets.

Financial assets are classified under three categories as required by NFRS 9, namely:

> Financial Assets measured at amortized cost:

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method less impairment, if any. The amortization of EIR
and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Bank classifies a financial asset measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

« The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows and

« The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

y/
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» Financial Assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income:

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial
assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in the
other comprehensive income (OClI).

» Financial Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss:

The Group classifies the financials assets as fair value through profit or loss if they are held for trading or
designated at fair value through profit or loss. Any other financial asset not classified as either amortized cost
or FVTOC|, is classified as FVTPL.

Il.  Financial Liabilities:
Financial liabilities are classified under two categories as required by NFRS 9, namely:
» Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost:

All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as subsequently
measured at amortized cost using effective interest method.

» Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition,
transaction cost directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.
Subsequent changes in fair value is recognized at profit or loss.

¢c. Measurement

i. Initial Measurement

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. Transaction cost in
relation to financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in Statement of Profit or
Loss.

ii. Subsequent measurement

Financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value,
with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value taken directly to the statement of profit or loss. Interest
and dividend income or expense is recorded in revenue according to the terms of the contract, or when the right
to payment has been established.

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value, with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value taken to Other Comprehensive Income. The Bank makes irrevocable election to route fair value
changes through Other Comprehensive Income. Gain/Loss on equity instruments classified as fair value through
other comprehensive income is charged directly to equity and impact of re-measurement is shown in OCI.

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost. Within
this category loans and advances to the customers have been recognized at amortized cost using the method that
very closely approximates effective interest rate method. The losses arising from impairment of such investments
are recognized in the income statement within credit loss expense. If the Bank were to sell or reclassify more
than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity investments before maturity (other than in certain specific
circumstances), the entire category would be tainted and would have to be reclassified as available-for-sale.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost, with any difference between proceeds net of
directly attributable transaction costs and the redemption value recognized in the statement of profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

d. De-recognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or where the
Bank has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. If substantially all the risks and rewards have
been neither retained nor transferred and the Bank has retained control, the assets continue to be recognized to
the extent of the Bank’s continuing involvement.
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Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying
value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognized in profit or loss.

. Determination of Fair Value

'Fair value' is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the
most advantageous market to which the Bank has access at that date. The fair value of liability reflects its non-
performance risk.

Assets and liabilities carried at fair value or for which fair values are disclosed have been classified into three
levels according to the observability of the significant inputs used to determine the fair values. Changes in the
observability of significant valuation inputs during the reporting period may result in a transfer of assets and
liabilities within the fair value hierarchy. The Bank recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy
when there is a significant change in either its principal market or the level of observability of the inputs to the
valuation techniques as at the end of the reporting period.

Level 1: Fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for
identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all
significant inputs are observable

Level 3: Portfolios are those where at least one input, which could have a significant effect on the instrument’s
valuation, is not based on observable market data.

When available, the Bank measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active market for that
instrument. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available and represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

If a market for a financial instrument is not active, the Bank establishes fair value using a valuation technique.
Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties (if
available), reference to the current fair value of other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash
flow analyses. The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction
price - i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. However, in some cases, the fair value of a financial
instrument on initial recognition may be different to its transaction price. If such fair value is evidenced by
comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same instrument (without modification) or
based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable markets, then the difference is
recognized in profit or loss on initial recognition of the instrument. In other cases, the difference is not recognized
in profit or loss immediately but is recognized over the life of the instrument on an appropriate basis or when
the instrument is redeemed, transferred or sold, or the fair value becomes observable. All unquoted equity
investments are recorded at cost. Promoter shares are valued at the last traded price of reporting date of such
shares and if information is not available then promoter shares are valued at 50% of market price of public shares
as on reporting date.

. Impairment of Loans & Advances

The Bank reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each reporting date to assess whether an
impairment loss should be provided in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The Management’s judgment is extensively
used in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the impairment loss.
These estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and hence actual results may differ, resulting
in future changes to the provisions made.

i Individual Impairment

The individual impairment provision applies to financial assets evaluated individually for impairment and is based
on Management's best estimate of the present value of the future cash flows that are expected to be received. In
estimating these cash flows, Management makes judgments about the number of factors including a borrower’s
financial situation and the net realizable value of any underlying collateral.
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The Bank considers the following factors in assessing objective evidence of impairment:
« Whether the counterparty is in default of principal or interest payments.
« When a counterparty files for bankruptcy and this would avoid or delay discharge of its obligation.
« Where the Bank initiates legal recourse of recovery in respect of a credit obligation of the counterpart.

« Where the Bank consents to a restructuring of the obligation, resulting in a diminished financial obligation,
demonstrated by a material forgiveness of debt or postponement of scheduled payments.

« Where there is observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows of a group of financial assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with specific individual
financial assets.

The bank has considered all loans and advances above NRs 15 million (including SOL), non-performing loan
accounts as per NRB directive and restructured loans for the individual assessment of impairment.

ii  Collective Impairment
A collective impairment provision is established for:

« Groups of homogeneous loans and advances and investment securities which are held-to-maturity, that are
not considered individually significant; and

« Groups of assets that are individually significant but that were not found to be individually impaired.

The collective impairment is carried using the statistical modelling such as historical trends of probability of
defaults, timings of recoveries, and current economic and market conditions which may warrant for the loss being
greater than the suggested by the historical trends. For the purpose of collective assessment of impairment bank
has categorized assets into following broad products as follows:

v Agriculture Loan
Foreign Employment Loan
Deprived Sector loan
Business Loans
Education loan

Gold Silver Loan

Hire Purchase Loan
Housing Loan

Loan Against FDR
Personal Loan

Real Estate Loan
Service Loan

Working Capital Loan

S N N N N N N N N SR NN

Margin Lending

iii  As per Loan Loss Provision of Nepal Rastra Bank

Loan loss provisions in respect of non-performing loans and advances are based on management's assessment
of the degree of impairment of the loans and advances, subject to the minimum provisioning level prescribed in
relevant NRB guideline, Provision is made for possible losses on loans and advances including bills purchased at
1.30% to 100% on the basis of classification of loans and advances, overdraft and bills purchased in accordance
with NRB directives.

Policy Adopted

As per the Carve out notice issued by ICAN, the Bank has measured impairment loss on loan and advances as the higher
of amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined as
per paragraph 63 of NAS 39.
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g. Impairment of Financial Investments-Available for Sale

The Bank also records impairment charges on available-for-sale equity investments when there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below their cost along with the historical share price movements,
duration and extent up to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

h. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Bank assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for an asset or a cash generating unit (CGU) at
each Reporting date or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances necessitate to do so. This requires
the estimation of the ‘Value in use’ of such individual assets or the CGUs. Estimating ‘Value in use’ requires the
Management to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the asset or the CGU and also to select
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of the relevant cash flows. This valuation requires
the Bank to make estimates about expected future cash flows and discount rates and hence, they are subject to
uncertainty.

3.5 Trading Assets

Financial assets are classified as trading assets (held for trading) if they have been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term, or form part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together
and for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short- term profit taking. They are recognized on trade date,
when the bank enters into contractual arrangements with counterparties, and are normally derecognized when sold.
They are initially measured at fair value, with transaction costs taken to profit or loss. Subsequent changes in their fair
values are recognized in profit or loss.

3.6 Derivative Assets and Derivative Liabilities

A derivative is a financial instrument whose value changes in response to the change in an underlying variable such
as an interest rate, commodities, bond, stocks, Currencies, and index; that requires no initial investment, or one that
is smaller than would be required for a contract with similar response to changes in market factors; and that is settled
at a future date.

Derivative instruments include transactions like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign exchange contract
etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes. Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at
fair value on the contract date and are subsequently re-measured to fair value at each reporting date. The Group does
not have any derivative instrument during the reporting period.

3.7 Property and Equipment

Property and Equipment are tangible items that are held for use in the production or supply of services, for rental to
others or for administrative purposes and are expected to be used during more than one period. The Bank applies
the requirements of the Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 16 (Property, Plant and Equipment) in accounting for these
assets. Property and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably measured.

Measurement:
The cost of an item of property and equipment shall be recognized as an asset, initially recognized at cost, if, and only if:
« Itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and

« The cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Cost includes purchase price including any non-refundable taxes after deducting volume rebates and trade discounts
and such other costs that are incurred to bring asset to location and condition to be operating in a manner intended by

management.
The cost of self-constructed assets includes the following:
+ The cost of materials and direct labor
« Any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their a intended use;

« When the Bank has an obligation to remove the asset or restore the site, an estimate of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located and

« Capitalized borrowing costs for qualifying assets
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3.8

Cost Model:

Property and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day— to—day servicing, less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the equipment when that cost
is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met.

Revaluation Model:
The Bank has not measured the any property and plant at revaluation model and at fair value.
Subsequent Cost:

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future economic benefits from the expenditure will
flow to the Bank. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the assets in working condition are expensed as incurred.
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment (calculated as the difference between the net
proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognized within other income in profit or loss.

Depreciation:

The Bank depreciates Property and equipment over the estimated useful life on a straight-line basis from the date the
assets areready forintended use. Assets acquired under finance lease and leasehold improvements are amortized over
the lower of estimated useful life and lease term. The estimated useful lives of assets for the current and comparative
period of significant items of Property and equipment are as follows:

Asset Group Useful Life

Computer & Accessories 4 Years
Furniture & Fixtures 7 Years
Furniture (Metal) 10 Years
Machineries 9 Years
Office Equipment 5 Years
Other Assets 5 Years
Vehicles 5 Years
Leasehold Properties Lease term

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each statement of financial
position date. The value of the assets fully depreciated but continued to be in use is considered not material. Assets
having acquisition cost less than 5,000 have been written off as an expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Goodwill/Intangible Assets
a. Acquired Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at fair value, which reflects market expectations of the probability that
the future economic benefits embodied in the asset will flow to the Bank and are amortized on the basis of their
expected useful lives.

b. Goodwill

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired in Business
Combination is recognized as goodwill. Goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. The
Group follows the partial goodwill method for the computation of goodwill in business combinations. Goodwill
is reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired.

c. Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets are recognized when the cost of the asset can be measured reliably, there is control over the asset
as a result of past events, future economic are expected from the asset. These intangible assets are recognized at
historical cost less impairment less amortization over their estimated useful life. Amortization of the intangible
assets is calculated using the straight-line method over the useful life of 5 years.
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d. Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. Costs associated with the development of software are capitalized where it is probable that
it will generate future economic benefits in excess of its cost. Software is amortized on a straight-line basis in profit
or loss over its estimated useful life, from the date that it is available for use. The estimated useful life of software
for the current and comparative periods is five years. Software assets with costs less than NPR 5,000 are charged off
on purchases as revenue expenditure. Costs associated with maintaining software are recognized as an expense
as incurred.

At each reporting date, these assets are assessed for indicators of impairment. In the event that an asset's
carrying amount is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is written down immediately.
Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

3.9 Investment Property

As per the provisions of NAS-40, Investment properties are land or building or both other than those classified as
property and equipment under NAS 16 —“Property, Plant and Equipment”; and assets classified as non-current assets
held for sale under NFRS 5 - “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”. Land and Building
acquired by the Bank as non-banking assets but not sold as on the reporting date

The Bank holds investment property that has been acquired though enforcement of security over the loans and
advances. Accordingly, Investment properties include the assets obtained as security for loans & advances and
subsequently taken over by the Bank in the course of loan recovery.

Measurement:

Investment property is accounted for under Cost Model in the Financial Statements. Accordingly, after recognition
as an asset, the property is carried at its cost, less impairment losses. If any property is reclassified to investment
property due to changes in its use, fair value of such property at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for
subsequent accounting.

De-recognition:

Investment properties are derecognized when they are disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use since no
future economic benefits are expected. Transfers are made to and from investment property only when there is a
change in use. When the use of a property changes such that it is reclassified as Property, Plant and Equipment, its fair
value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent accounting.

3.10Assets held for sale and discontinued operation

Land or Land and Building other than those classified as property and equipment and investment property under
relevant accounting standard are presented under this account head. The Non-Banking Assets acquired by the Bank
is classified as assets held for sale only if there is intention to sale with identification of prospective buyer has been
identified. The bank doesn’t have any Land or building classified under Asset held for sale and Discontinued operation.

3.11Investment in Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Bank has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and
operating policies. Investments in associate entities are accounted for using the equity method (equity-accounted
investees) and are recognized initially at cost.

The Bank shall discontinue the use of the equity method from the date when its investment ceases to be an associate
as follows:

. If the associate becomes a subsidiary, the bank shall account for its investment in accordance with NFRS 3 Business
Combinations and NFRS 10.

. If the retained interest in the former associate is a financial asset, the Bank shall measure the retained interest
at fair value. The fair value of the retained interest shall be regarded as its fair value on initial recognition as a
financial asset in accordance with NFRS 9. The Bank shall recognize in profit or loss any difference between:

a.The fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in associate or joint
venture; and

b.The carrying amount of the investment as the date the equity method was discontinued
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. When the Bank discontinues the use of equity method, the Bank shall account for all amounts previously
recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to that investment on the same basis as would have been
required if the investee had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

3.12Income Tax

The accounting for taxes on income is as per NAS 12, Provision for current income tax is made in accordance with the
provisions of the prevailing Income Tax Act, 2058 and Rules including amendments thereon. Tax expense is the aggregate
amount included in determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current and deferred taxation. Income
Tax expense is recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it relates to items recognized directly
in equity or other comprehensive income in which case it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.
The Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to tax authorities.

Tax expenses comprises of current tax and deferred tax.
a. Current Tax

Current tax is the income tax expense is recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it relates
to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income in which case it is recognized in equity or
in other comprehensive income. Current tax is the amounts expected or paid to Inland Revenue Department in
respect of the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years.

b. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
balance sheet and the amounts attributed to such assets and liabilities for tax purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can
be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates expected to apply in the periods in which the assets will be realized
or the liabilities settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted, or substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they arise in the same tax reporting group and relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority, and when the group has a legal right to offset.

3.13 Deposit, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities

Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities are the Bank’s sources of funding.
a. Deposit

Deposits include non-interest-bearing deposits, saving deposits, term deposits, call deposits and margin deposits.
Deposits by banks & customers are financial liabilities of the bank as there is an obligation to deliver cash or
financial assets back to the depositing bank or customer and are initially recognized at fair value, plus for those
financial liabilities not at fair value through profit and loss. The transaction price is considered as the fair value for
measuring the deposits.

b. Debt Securities Issued

Debt Securities are initially measured at the fair value less incremental direct cost and subsequently at their
amortized cost using effective interest method except where the bank designates liabilities at fair value through
profit t or loss.

c. Subordinated Liabilities

Sub-ordinated liabilities are liabilities subordinated, at the event of winding up, to the claims of depositors, debt
securities issued and other creditors.

3.14 Provisions

As per the provisions of NAS 37, “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” A provision is recognized if,
as a result of a past event, the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount recognized is the
best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, taking in to account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation at that date.
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Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount
is determined based on the present value of those cash flows. A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when
the expected benefits to be derived by the Bank from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its
obligations under the contract. The provision is measured as the present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Provision is not recognized for
future operating losses.

Before a provision is established, the Bank recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.
The expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of Profit or Loss net of any reimbursement.

3.15 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits during the period arising from the course of the ordinary activities
of an entity when those inflows result in increases in equity, other than increases relating to contributions from equity
participants. Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the
revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is not recognized during the period in which its recoverability of income is
not probable. The Bank's revenue comprises of -

. Interest Income

. Fees and Commission

o Dividend Income

o Net Trading Income

o Net income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

a. Interest Income

Interest income includes interest income on the basis of accrual basis from loan and advance to borrowers, loans,
and investment in government securities, investment in NRB bond, corporate bonds, and interest on investment
securities measured at fair value.

Carve out issued by ICAN

Carve out on EIR which was initially applicable till FY 2076/77 has again been extended for FY 2080/81 as well.
As per the carve out regarding the EIR rate treatment issued by ICAN, when calculating EIR, all these shall
be considered unless it is immaterial or impracticable to do so. Since all these transaction costs cannot be
identified separately and separate EIR computation for every customer seems impracticable, such transaction
costs of all previous years has not been considered when computing EIR. due to impracticability, such
relevant costs are ignored, due to which EIR rate equals to the rate provided to customers and therefore,
income recognized by system on accrual basis has been considered as income once the recorded value of
a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been reduced due to an impairment loss, interest
income continues to be recognized using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Interest accrual is suspended and are not recognized as Interest income in the Statement of Profit or Loss in
case, Loans which are categorized on Bad Category irrespective of the net realizable value of collateral.

Criteria to cease the accrual of interest

Bank and financial institutions shall accrue the interest on loan although it has been decided to suspend
the recognition of income. However, BFIs shall cease to accrue interest on loan, in case where contractual
payments of principal and/or interest of the loan which are classified under bad category. Cessation of
accrual of interest for accounting purpose shall not preclude an entity to continue to accrue interest on a
memorandum basis for legal enforcement purposes unless the loan is written off.

b. Fees and Commission

Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over that period. These fees include
Service fees, Loan administrative fees and Commission income. Fees and Commission Income being the
transaction costs integral to the effective interest rate on financial asset. However, as per the Carve out issued by
ICAN regarding the treatment of fee and commission in EIR rate, fees to be considered for EIR computation unless it
is impracticable to determine reliably. Since, such transaction costs are not identifiable for separate customer and
therefore being impracticable, they have not been considered when computing EIR. They have been booked on
accrual basis except commission on guarantees issued by the bank which is recognized as income over the period
of the guarantee. Other fee and commission income are recognized on accrual basis.
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c. Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when the Bank’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally
when the shareholders approve the dividend.

d. Net Trading Income

Net trading income comprises gains less losses relating to trading assets and liabilities, and includes all realized
interest, dividend and foreign exchange differences as well as unrealized changes in fair value of trading assets
and liabilities.

e. Net income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial instruments designated at fair value through
profit or loss are included in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Contractual interest
income and expense on financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss is recognized within net
interest income.

3.16Interest Expenses:

For financial liabilities measured at amortized cost using the rate that closely approximates effective interest rate,
interest expense is recorded using such rate. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability.

3.17 Employee Benefit:
Employee benefits include:

a. Short Term Employee Benefits:

These are employee benefits which fall due wholly within twelve months in which the employees render the
related service. Such as the following:

i. Wages, salaries and social security contributions,
ii. Festival Allowances, rewards and other incentives,
iii. Paid annual leave and paid sick leave

iv. Profit-sharing and bonuses and

v. Non-monetary benefits

Short term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service
is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short term cash bonus or profit-
sharing plans if the Bank has present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

b. Long Term Employee Benefits:

. Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which a Bank pays fixed contribution into
a separate Bank (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund
does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee services in the current and prior
periods, as defined in Nepal Accounting Standards — NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).

The contribution payable by the employer to a defined contribution plan in proportion to the services rendered
to Bank by the employees and is recorded as an expense under ‘Personnel expense’ as and when they become
due. Unpaid contribution is recorded as a liability under ‘Other Liabilities’.

Bank contributed 10% on the salary of each employee to the Employees’ Provident Fund. The above expenses
are identified as contributions to ‘Defined Contribution Plans’ as defined in Nepal Accounting Standards — NAS
19 (Employee Benefits).

. Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. Accordingly,
leave encashment and gratuity has been considered as defined benefit plans as per NAS 19 Employee Benefits.
Net Obligation in DBP is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods and discounting that benefit
to determine its present value and then deducting the fair value of any plan assets. Bank recognizes all actuarial
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gains and losses arising from DBP in the Other Comprehensive Income and expenses related to DBP under
personnel expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Under NFRS, the actuarial gains and losses form part of re measurement of the net defined benefit liability /
asset which is recognized in Other Comprehensive income (OCl). Also, the tax effect of the same has also been
recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) under NFRS. Some assumptions used by actuarial valuator for
valuation are as under:

« Discount Rate: Management estimation of 10% has been considered as discounting rate for defined
benefit calculation.

« Expected Return on Plan Asset: Average long-term rate of return expected on investments of
Trust Fund.

« Salary Escalation Rate: Management estimation of 4% after considering the expected earnings
inflation as well as performance and seniority related increase.

« Withdrawal rate: Management estimation on the basis of 5% on the basis of expected long term
future employee turnover within the organization.

+ Expected average remaining working lives of the employees: 13.40 Years

«  Gratuity

In compliance with Labor Act, 2074, provision is made for gratuity payable to employees who joined bank on
a permanent basis.

An actuarial valuation is carried out every year to ascertain the full liability under gratuity.

Bank’s obligation in respect of defined benefit obligation is calculated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned for their service in the current and prior periods and discounting that
benefit to determine its present value, then deducting the fair value of any plan assets to determine the net
amount to be shown in the Statement of Financial Position. The value of a defined benefit asset is restricted to
the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reduction on the
future contributions to the plan. In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is
given to any minimum funding requirement that apply to any plan in Bank. An economic benefit is available
to Bank if it is realizable during the life of the plan, or on settlement of the plan liabilities.

Bank determines the interest expense on the defined benefit liability by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit liability at the beginning of the annual period to the defined benefit liability at
the beginning of the annual period. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on government bonds
that have maturity dates approximating to the terms of Bank’s obligations.

The increase in gratuity liabilities attributable to the services provided by employees during the year ended
16th July, 2023 (current service cost) has been recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss under ‘Personnel
Expenses’together with the net interest expense. Bank recognizes the total actuarial gain and loss that arises
in calculating Bank’s obligation in respect of gratuity in other comprehensive income during the period in
which it occurs.

The demographic assumptions underlying the valuation are retirement age (58 years), early withdrawal from
service and retirement on medical grounds.

«  Other long-term employee benefits

Other long-term employee benefits are all employee benefits other than short term employee benefits,
post-employment benefits and terminal benefits. Accordingly, leave encashment plan of the Bank has been
considered as Other Long-Term Employee Benefits as per Nepal Accounting Standards — NAS 19 (Employee
Benefits).

c¢. Employee Bonus

Employee bonus shall be calculated at the rate of 10% of Profit before bonus and tax.
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3.18 Leases:

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or it contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of
a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. NFRS 16 ‘Leases’is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 Shrawan 2078. A lessee is required to recognize a right-of-use asset (ROU) representing
its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.
The main reason for this change is that this approach will result in a more comparable representation of a lessee’s
assets and liabilities in relation to other companies and, together with enhanced disclosures, will provide greater
transparency of a lessee’s financial leverage and capital employed. The standard permits a lessee to choose either
a full retrospective or a modified retrospective transition approach. The Bank recognizes a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove any improvements made to
branches or office premises. The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from
the commencement date to the end of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

Theleaseliabilityisinitially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, and Bank'’s
incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Bank uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Average base rate of commercial banks published by Nepal Rastra Bank for the relevant financial year has been
considered as its incremental borrowing rate i.e. 10%.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

. Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable

. Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

. Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and

. The exercise price under a purchase option that the Bank is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in

an optional renewal period if the Bank is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early
termination of a lease unless the Bank is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is re-measured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Bank’s estimate of
the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Bank changes its assessment of whether
it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.
When the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced
to zero. The Bank presents right-of-use assets under property and equipment (Note 4.13) and lease liabilities under
other liabilities (Note 4.23) in the Statement of Financial Position. The interest expenses on lease liability, depreciation
charges on right of use assets and short term lease payment has been presented under interest expenses (4.29) and
depreciation and amortization (4.38) respectively in the statement of profit or loss.

Simplified approach permitted by Standard for Low-Value Leases:

The Bank has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-value assets and
short-term leases. The Bank recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases contacts as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

3.19Foreign Currency Translation

All foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency, which is Nepalese Rupees, using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates when the transactions were affected.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to Nepalese
Rupees using the spot foreign exchange rate ruling at that date and all differences arising on non-trading activities are
taken to ‘Other Operating Income’in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The foreign currency gains or loss on monetary
items is the difference between amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for
effective interest and payments during the period, and the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the rates
of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
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Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items in foreign currency measured at fair
value are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange differences arising on the settlement or reporting of monetary items at rates different from those
which were initially recorded are dealt with in the Statement of Profit or Loss. However, foreign currency differences
arising on available-for sale equity instruments are recognized in other comprehensive income. Forward exchange
contracts are valued at the forward market rates ruling on the reporting date.

3.20 Financial Guarantee and Loan Commitments

Financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due. Financial guarantee contracts may
have various legal forms, such as a guarantee, some types of letter of credit, etc.

Where the bank has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of a customer in the form of
loans, overdrafts, etc. whether cancellable or not and the bank had not made payments at the reporting date, those
instruments are included in these financial statements as commitments.

3.21 Share Capital & Reserves
a. Share Capital

Financial instruments issues are classified as equity when there is no contractual obligation to transfer cash, other
financial assets or issue available number of own equity instruments. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares are shown in equity as deduction net of taxes from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares classified as equity are recognized in equity in the period in which they are declared.

The share issue expenses which can be avoided for the issue was charged in the year of issue directly through
equity and disclosed in statement of changes in equity. Tax impact is also disclosed.

b. Reserves
The reserves include regulatory and free reserves.
« Retained Earnings

The bank has to appropriate different reserves from retained earnings. Retained earnings comprises of current
Fiscal Year profit and any non-distributed profit of preceding Fiscal Years.

. General Reserve

The Bank is required to appropriate a minimum 20% of current year’s net profit into this heading each year
until it becomes double of paid up capital and then after a minimum 10% of profit each year. This reserve is
not available for distribution to shareholders in any form and requires specific approval of the central bank for
any transfers from this heading.

« Exchange Equalization Reserve

The Bank is required to appropriate 25% of current year’s total revaluation gain (except gain from revaluation
of Indian Currency) into this heading.

¢ Assets Revaluation Reserve

Any Reserve created from revaluation of assets (such as Property & Equipment, Intangible Assets, Investment
Property) shall be presented under this heading. Revaluation reserves often serve as a cushion against
unexpected losses but may not be fully available to absorb unexpected losses due to the subsequent
deterioration in market value and tax consequences of revaluation. The Bank has followed cost model
therefore no assets revaluation reserve is created.

«  Capital Reserve

The capital reserve represents the amount of those reserves which are in nature of capital and which shall
not be available for distribution of cash dividend. The amount from share forfeiture due to non-payment of
remaining amount for the unpaid shares, capital grants received in cash or kind, capital reserve arising out of
merger and acquisition etc. are presented under this heading.
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e  Special Reserve

Any special reserve that is created as per the specific requirement of NRB directive or special instruction of
NRB are represented as special reserve. The amount allocated to this reserve by debiting retained earning
account are presented under this heading.

«  Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

The Bank is required to appropriate an amount equivalent to 1% of net profit into this fund annually. The
fund is created towards funding the Bank’s corporate social responsibility expenditure during the subsequent
year. Balance in this fund is directly reclassified to retained earnings in the subsequent year to the extent of
payments made under corporate social responsibility activities.

o Debenture Redemption Reserve

The Bank is required to maintain a redemption reserve in respect of borrowing raised through debenture
issuance. As per the terms of NRB approval relating to the Bank’s debenture issuance, the Bank is annually
required to transfer 16.67% of the debenture’s face value to redemption reserve. such provision shall not be
applicable in the year of issue.

«  Employee Training Fund

The Bank is required to incur expenses towards employee training and development for an amount that is
equivalent to at least 3% of the preceding year’s salary and allowance. Any shortfall amount in meeting this
mandatory expense requirement in the current year will have to be transferred to this reserve fund through
appropriation of net profit and the amount shall accumulate in the fund available for related expenses in the
subsequent year. Balance in this fund is directly reclassified to retained earnings in the subsequent year to the
extent of expenses made for employees training related activities.

* Investment Adjustment Reserve

Investment Adjustment Reserve Directive No 8. Of Nepal Rastra Bank’s Unified Directives requires, the bank
has to create the investment reserve of an amount equivalent to the investment in equity shares if the shares
remained unquoted for 3 years from the date of investment. Accordingly, the movement in investment
adjustment reserves is disclosed below.

Prabhu Capital Limited 1,500,000 Sold during the year
A.da‘rsha Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha 84,000 i Listed in NEPSE
Limited

Total 1,584,000 -

« Regulatory Reserve

This is a non-free statutory reserve and is a requirement as prescribed in NRB directive. In the transition to
NFRS from previous GAAP the Bank is required to reclassify all amounts that are resultant of re-measurement
adjustments and that are recognized in retained earnings into this reserve heading. The amount reclassified
to this reserve includes:

- Re-measurement adjustments such as interest income recognized against interest receivables i.e.
Accrued Interest Receivable after considering effect of bonus and income tax

- Difference in loan loss provision as per NRB directive and impairment on loan and advance as per
NFRS,

- Amount equals to deferred tax assets,
- Actuarial loss recognized in other comprehensive income,
- Amount of goodwill recognized under NFRS.

- Non-Banking assets after taking effect of bonus and income tax

A\
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o Actuarial Gain/(Loss) Reserve

Actuarial Gain/ loss Reserve has been created to record the Actuarial gain or loss occurring due to change in
actuarial assumption under NAS 19. The gain or loss has been disclosed under this reserve after presentation
through Other Comprehensive Income.

. Fair Value Reserve

Assets that are not classified as Fair Value through Profit and Loss, held to maturity and Loans and Receivables
are categorized as Available for Sale (AFS) financial instruments. The Bank has under regulatory provisions a
requirement to appropriate the upward movements in fair value under AFS reserve. The accounting of gain or
loss in the fair value movement of AFS Financial Assets is done though other comprehensive income.

e  Otherreserve

Any reserve created with specific or non-specific purpose (except stated in above) are presented under thus
by disclosing accounting heads.

3.22 Earnings per Share

Bank presents basic and diluted Earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing
the profit and loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting both the profit and loss attributable to
the ordinary equity holders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any. Earnings per share is calculated and presented in consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

3.23 Segment Reporting

The Bank’s segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS 8 Operating Segments. Operating segments are reported
in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the bank’s management, which is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. Income and expenses directly associated
with each segment are included in determining business segment performance. The bank has identified geographical
segments based on provinces of Nepal as well as revenue generating areas of the Bank i.e. Regular Banking, Treasury
Functions and Transaction Banking. Segment report include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

3.24Dividend on Ordinary Shares

Dividend on ordinary shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved by the
Bank’s shareholders. Interim Dividend is deducted from equity when they are declared and no longer at the discretion
of the Bank. Dividend for the year that is approved after the reporting date is disclosed as an event after the reporting
date.

3.25 Cash Flow Statement

The cash flow statement has been prepared whereby gross cash receipts and gross cash payments of operating
activities, finance activities and investing activities have been recognized.

3.26 Comparative Figure

The comparative figures and phrases have been rearranged wherever necessary to conform to the current year’s
presentation.
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Notes to Financial Statement

4.1 Cash and cash equivalent

Group Bank
Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79
Cash in Hand 892,948,441 883,140,174 892,894,684 883,052,748
Balances with B/Fis 3,696,282,374 | 4,341,196,789 3,709,978,964  4,340,803,525
Money at call and short notice - - - -
Other - - - -
Total 4,589,230,815 5,224,336,963 4,602,873,647 5,223,856,272

The fair value of cash and cash equivalent is its carrying value. Cash at vault is adequately insured for physical and
financial risks. The amount of cash at vault is maintained on the basis of the liquidity and business requirements.
Balance with BFls includes balance maintained at various banks and financial institutions.

4.2 Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Group Bank
Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79
Statutory balances with NRB 2,961,796,053 1,998,862,930 2,961,796,053 1,998,862,930
Securities purchased under resale - - -
agreement

Other deposit and receivable from NRB - - - -
Total 2,961,796,053 @ 1,998,862,930 2,961,796,053 1,998,862,930

The fair value of balance with the Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) is its carrying amount itself. Balance with the NRB is
principally maintained as a part of the regulatory cash reserve ratio required by NRB.

4.3 Placements with Bank and Financial Institutions

Group Bank

Particulars 2079-80 2079-80 2078-79
Placement with domestic B/Fls 15,000,000 520,000,000 - 500,000,000

Placement with Foreign B/Fls - = - -

Less: Allowances for impairement - - - -
Total 15,000,000 520,000,000 - 500,000,000

4.4 Derivative Financial Instruments

Group Bank

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79
Held for trading
Interest rate swap - o - -

Forward exchange contract - = - -
Others = = - -
Held for risk management

Interest rate swap - S o -
Forward exchange contract - S = -
Others - = - -
Total - = - -

A\
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4.5 Other Trading assets

Bank

2079-80
Treasury Bills -

Particulars

Government bond -
NRB bonds -

Domestic Corporate bonds 43,261,001
Equities 84,086,288
Other -
Total 127,347,288
Pledged -
Non- Pledged 127,347,288
4.6 Loans and advances to B/Fls
Group

2078-79

28,807,158
96,887,615

125,694,773

125,694,773

2079-80 2078-79

Bank

2079-80

Particulars

Loan to Microfinance Institutions 3,012,943,069
Other -
Less: Allowances for Impairment (39,143,870)
Total

2078-79

2,883,146,330

(37,470,857)

2079-80
3,012,943,069

2078-79
2,883,146,330

(39,143,870) (37,470,857)

2,973,799,200 2,845,675,474 2,973,799,200 2,845,675,474

The loans have been provided to Microfinance Institutions in the normal course of business including the accured

interest amounting NPR 1,876,160.
4.6.1 Allowances for Impairment
Group
2079-80

Particulars

2078-79

Balance as at Shrawan 1 37,470,857
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year 1,673,013

Recoveries/Reversal -
Amount written off -
Balance as at Ashad end 39,143,870

4.7 Loans and advances to customers
Group

26,007,211

11,463,645

37,470,857

Bank
2079-80 2078-79
37,470,857 26,007,211
1,673,013 11,463,645
39,143,870 37,470,857
Bank

2079-80

ETRI ETS

Loans and advances measured at

. 63,562,121,842
amortized cost

Less: Impairment allowances

2078-79

59,227,385,519

Individual Impairment (926,956,811) (493,791,769)
Collective Impairment (677,296,450) (685,977,558)
Net amount 61,957,868,581 58,047,616,193
Loan and advances measured at FVTPL - -
Total 61,957,868,581 58,047,616,193

2079-80 2078-79

63,561,184,263 = 59,226,430,663

(926,956,811) (493,791,769)
(677,296,450) (685,977,558)
61,956,931,002  58,046,661,337
61,956,931,002  58,046,661,337

Above impairment is as per NRB directive no. 2 which is higher than total impairment as per NAS 39.

y/
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4.7.1 Analysis of loan and advances - By product

Particulars

Product
Term Loans
Overdraft
Trust Receipt/Import Loans

Demand and other Working Capital Loans
Personal Residential Loans

Real Estate Loans

Margin Lending Loans

Hire Purchase Loans

Deprived Sector Loans

Bills Purchased

Staffs Loans

Other
Sub-total

Interest Receivable

Grand Total

Particulars

Nepalese Rupee

Indian Rupee

United States Dollar
Great Britain Pound

Euro
Japanese Yen
Chinese Yuan
Other

Grand Total

2079-80

2078-79

Group Bank
2078-79 2079-80
18,883,205,341  24,074,362,563

24,074,362,563
15,108,806,253
167,736,171
11,978,024,382
968,132,385
1,334,104,585
3,208,167,035
3,003,409,636
454,957,123
2,689,611,685
62,987,311,818
574,810,025
63,562,121,842

4.7.2 Analysis of loan and advances - By Currency

16,281,404,097
482,881,160
9,537,928,337
904,372,130
1,040,310,513
4,089,524,949
3,954,891,245
336,415,672
3,417,385,097
58,928,318,541
299,066,978
59,227,385,519

Group

2079-80

63,562,121,842

63,562,121,842

59,227,385,519

59,227,385,519

15,108,806,253
167,736,171
11,978,024,382
968,132,385
1,334,104,585
3,208,167,035
3,003,409,636
454,019,543
2,689,611,685
62,986,374,238
574,810,025
63,561,184,263

18,883,205,341
16,281,404,097
482,881,160
9,537,928,337
904,372,130
1,040,310,513
4,089,524,949
3,954,891,245
335,460,816
3,417,385,097
58,927,363,685
299,066,978
59,226,430,663

Bank

2079-80
63,561,184,263

63,561,184,263

2078-79
59,226,430,663

59,226,430,663




4.7.3 Analysis of loan and advances - By Collateral

Particulars

Group

2079-80
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Bank

Secured
Moveable/Immoveable Assets
Gold and Silver
Guarantee of Domestic BFls
Government Guarantee
Guarantee of International Rated Bank
Collateral of Export Document
Collateral of Fixed Deposit Receipt
Collatereal of Government Securities
Counter Guarantee
Personal Guarantee
Other Collateral

Sub Total

Unsecured

Grand Total

4.7.4 Allowances for Impairment

Particulars

59,007,176,251
1,001,505,468

999,775,114

1,546,157,669

54,181,238,277
1,175,191,597

1,492,140,225

1,041,538,872

59,007,176,251
1,001,505,468

999,775,114

1,546,157,669

54,181,238,277
1,175,191,597

1,492,140,225

1,041,538,872

62,554,614,501 57,890,108,971

1,006,569,762 1,336,321,692

63,561,184,263  59,226,430,663
Bank

Specific allowances for impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1

Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year
Recoveries/reversal during the year

Write- offs

Exchange rate variance on foreign
currency

Other movement

Balance at Ashad end

Collective allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1

Impairment loss for the year:
Charge/(reversal) for the year

Exchange rate variance on foreign
currency

Other movement
Balance at Ashad end

Total allowances for impairment

62,554,614,501 57,890,108,971
1,007,507,341 1,337,276,547
63,562,121,842  59,227,385,519
Group
2079-80 2078-79
493,791,769 261,483,451
433,165,042 232,308,317
433,165,042 232,308,317
926,956,811 493,791,769
685,977,558 685,719,264
(8,681,107) 258,293
(8,681,107) 258,293
677,296,450 685,977,558
1,604,253,261 1,179,769,326

493,791,769
433,165,042
433,165,042

926,956,811

685,977,558
(8,681,107)
(8,681,107)

677,296,450
1,604,253,261

261,483,451
232,308,317
232,308,317

493,791,769

685,719,264
258,293
258,293

685,977,558
1,179,769,326
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4.8 Investment in securities

Group Bank
Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80
Investment securities designated at = = = =
FVTPL

Investment securities measured at

T o 14,322,542,071 9,400,750,453  14,309,942,071 9,390,100,453

'F’{}’Tegtcr{‘e”t in equity measured at 608,611,268 519,432,882 608,606,433 519,427,379
Total 14,931,153,338  9,920,183,335 14,918,548,503  9,909,527,832

The bank invests in capital market directly or through Portfolio Management Service. The bank has an agreement
with Nabil Investment for PMS with the initial amount of NPR 200 Mio and the cost of investment as on 31st Ashad
2080 is Rs 168,753,396.81 Investment made by the development bank has been presented under this account head
in two categories i.e. investment securities measured at amortized cost and investment in equity measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Investment other than those measured at amortized cost is measured
at fair value and changes in fair value has been recognized in other comprehensive income. Where income from the
investment is received in the form of bonus shares, the valuation of investment is made by increasing the number of
shares without changing in the cost of investment.

4.8.1 Investment in securities measured at amortized cost

Group Bank
Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79
Debt Securities - - - -
Government Bond 11,079,117,321 8,935,174,776 = 11,079,117,321 8,935,174,776
Government treasury bills 2,230,824,750 454,925,676 2,230,824,750 454,925,676
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds - - - -
Nepal Rastra Bank deposit instruments 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 =
Other 12,600,000 10,650,000 - -
Less: Specific allowances for impairment - - - -
Total 14,322,542,071 9,400,750,453 = 14,309,942,071 9,390,100,453

4.8.2 Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Group Bank
Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79
Equity Instrument
Quoted equity securities 580,331,418 473,884,682 580,326,583 473,879,179
Unquoted equity securities 28,279,850 45,548,200 28,279,850 45,548,200

Total 608,611,268 519,432,882 608,606,433 519,427,379
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@/ Garima Bikas Bank Limited

4.9 Current tax Assets/Liability

Group Bank

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79

Current tax assets 501,844,289 452,485,841 496,225,005 448,642,707
Current year Income Tax Assets 501,844,289 452,485,841 496,225,005 448,642,707
Tax Assets of Prior Periods = = = =
Current tax liabilities 553,283,615 473,820,814 553,419,388 473,956,587
Current year Income Tax Liabilities 553,419,388 473,956,587 553,419,388 @ 473,956,587
Tax Liabilities of Prior Periods (135,773) (135,773) - -
Total of income tax assets/(liabilities) (51,439,326) (21,334,973) (57,194,383) (25,313,880)

Current Tax Assets includes advance income tax paid by the Bank under self assessment tax returns filed as per the
Income Tax Act 2058 and tax deducted at source (TDS) on behalf of the Bank. Simiarly, the current income tax liabilities
includes the tax payable to the Government computed as per the provision of the Income Tax Act 2058.

4.10 Investment In subsidiaries

Bank
Particulars | 2079-80 | 207879
Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries - -
Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries 123,900,000 123,900,000
Total Investment 123,900,000 123,900,000
Less: Impairment Allowances - -
Net Carrying Amount 123,900,000 123,900,000

4.10.1 Investment In quoted subsidiaries

Bank
_ 2079-80 | 2078-79
Particulars I E—— .
Cost Fair Value ‘ Cost Fair Value

s Ltd

.......shares of Rs.... Each - - - -
oo Ltd

.......shares of Rs.... Each - - - -

Total - - - -
4.10.2 Investment In unquoted subsidiaries

. 2079-80 2078-79
Particulars T

Cost Fair Value ‘ Cost Fair Value

Garima Capital Limited
1,239,000 shares of Rs 100 Each 123,900,000 123,900,000 123,900,000 | 123,900,000
Total 123,900,000 123,900,000 123,900,000 123,900,000
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4.10.3 Information relating to subsidiaries of the bank

Group Bank
. Percentage of ownership
Particulars g s B
2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79
Garima Capital Limited - - 51.20% 51.20%
Total - - 51.20% 51.20%

4.10.4: Non Controlling Interest of the Subsidiaries

Group
. Garima Capital Limited
Particulars 7
2079-80 2078-79

Equity Interest held by NCI (%) 48.80% 48.80%
Profit (Loss) allocated during the year (1,403,982) (16,510,008)
Accumulated Balances of NCl as on Ashad End 87,921,549 89,325,531
Dividend Paid to NCI - 18,483,896

4.11 Investment In associates

Particulars

Investment in Quoted associates - - S 2 - . - i

Investment in Unquoted associates - - 618,700 @ 5,964,682 - - 618700 @ 5,964,682
Total Investment - - 618700 5,964,682 - - 618700 5,964,682
Less: Impairment Allowances - - - - - - - -
Net Carrying Amount - - 618700 @ 5,964,682 - - 618700 @ 5,964,682

Investment in Nepal Clearing House is treated as Associates from 8th Ashad 2075 till FY 2078-79 since the bank
had significant influence in the company via representation on the board of Directors of the company. But since
FY 2078-79 the representation of bank is longer serving as board of director hence the bank derecognised the
investment as investment in associate.

4.11.1 Investment In quoted associates

Particulars

e reeeraseenans Ltd
......shares of Rs.... Each - - = = - - - -
i Ltd
......shares of Rs.... Each - - = g - - - R
Total - 5 = = - - - R
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@/ Garima Bikas Bank Limited

4.11.2 Investment In unquoted associates

Particulars

Nepal Clearing House Limited
7,424 Shares of Rs. 100 Each - - 618,700 | 5,964,682 - - 618700 5,964,682
Total - - 618,700 5,964,682 - - 618,700 5,964,682

4.11.3 Information relating to associates of the bank
Group Bank
Particulars Percentage of ownership Percentage of ownership
2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79
Nepal Clearing House Limited 0.41% 0.41%

4.11.4: Equity value of associates

Group Bank
Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79
Nepal Clearing House Limited 1,446,195,191 1,446,195,191
Total 1,446,195,191 1,446,195,191

4.12 Investment Properties
Group Bank

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79

Investment Properties measured at Fair
Value

Balance as on Shrwawan 01 - = - _
Addition/(Disposal) during the year - - - -
Net Changes in fair value during the year = = = =
Adjustment/Transfer 5 - - i
Net Amount - o - -

Investment Properties measured at
Cost

Balance as on Shrawan 01 36,514,800 39,880,571 36,514,800 39,880,571
Addition/(Disposal) during the year 150,753,984 (3,365,771) 150,753,984 (3,365,771)
Adjustment/Transfer - - - -
Accumulated depreciation - - - -
Accumulated impairment loss - - - -
Net Amount 187,268,784 36,514,800 187,268,784 36,514,800
Total 187,268,784 36,514,800 187,268,784 36,514,800
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V&Garlma Bikas Bank Limited

4.14 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Group
Total Ashad
s e e

Cost
As on Shrawan 01 2078 - 25,863,138 - 299,450 26,162,588
Addition during the year 92,311,741 4,022,950 - 67,800 96,402,492

Acquisition 92,311,741 4,022,950 - 67,800 96,402,492

Capitalization - - - - -
Transfer from Sahara Bikas Bank Ltd - 2,089,701 - - 2,089,701
Disposal during the year - - - - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - - - - -
Balance as on Ashad end 2079 92,311,741 31,975,789 - 367,250 124,654,781
Addition during the Year - 2,793,925 - 152,549 2,946,474

Acquisition - 2,793,925 - 152,549 2,946,474

Capitalization - - - - -
Disposal during the year - (621,500) - (56,499) (677,999)
Adjustment/Revaluation S . S = =
Balance as on Ashad end 2080 92,311,741 34,148,214 - 463,300 126,923,256
Amortisation and Impairment
As on Shrawan 01. 2078 3 17,447,478 = 61,467 17,508,946
Impairment for the year - 125,742 - - 125,742
Amortisation charge for the year - 3,257,247 - 57,056 3,314,303
Transfer from Sahara Bikas Bank Ltd - 1,674,873 - - 1,674,873
Disposals - - - - -
Adjustment - - - - -
As on Ashad end 2079 - | 22,505,340 - 118,523 22,623,863
Impairment for the year S 171,226 e e 171,226
Amortisation charge for the year - 3,308,601 - 73,830 3,382,431
Disposals - (621,500) - (56,499) (677,999)
Adjustment - - - - -
As on Ashad end 2080 - | 25,363,667 - 135,854 25,499,521
Capital Work in Progress 2078-79 56,500 56,500
Capital Work in Progress 2079-80 - -
Net Book Value
As on Ashad end 2079 92,311,741 9,526,949 - 248,727 102,087,417
As on Ashad end 2080 92,311,741 8,784,548 - 327,446 101,423,735

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software.Costs associated with the development of software are capitalized where it is probable that it
will generate future economic benefits in excess of its cost. Computer software costs are amortized on the basis of
expected useful life. Costs associated with maintaining software are recognized as an expense as incurred.Software
is amortised on a straight-line basis in profit or loss over its estimated useful life, from the date that it is available for
use. The estimated useful life of software for the current and comparative periods is five years.
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4.14 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

mm Developed

Cost
As on Shrawan 01 2078
Addition during the year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Transfer from Sahara Bikas Bank Ltd
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation
Balance as on Ashad end 2079
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation
Balance as on Ashad end 2080
Amortisation and Impairment
As on Shrawan 01. 2078
Amortisation charge for the year
Impairment for the year
Transfer from Sahara Bikas Bank Ltd
Disposals
Adjustment
As on Ashad end 2079
Impairment for the year
Amortisation charge for the year
Disposals
Adjustment
As on Ashad end 2080
Capital Work in Progress 2078-79
Capital Work in Progress 2079-80
Net Book Value
As on Ashad end 2079
As on Ashad end 2080

92,311,741
92,311,741

92,311,741

92,311,741

92,311,741
92,311,741

24,901,410
4,022,950
4,022,950
2,089,701

31,014,061
2,737,425
2,737,425

(621,500)

33,129,986

17,155,335
3,257,247
1,674,873

22,087,455
3,308,601
(621,500)

24,774,555

8,926,607
8,355,431

Bank
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Total Ashad
end

299,450 25,200,860
67,800 96,402,492
67,800 96,402,492

2,089,701

367,250 123,693,053

152,549 2,889,974

152,549 2,889,974
(56,499) (677,999)

463,300 125,905,028
61,467 17,216,802
57,056 3,314,303

1,674,873

118,523 22,205,978

73,830 3,382,431
(56,499) (677,999)

135,854 24,910,410

248,727 101,487,075

327,446 100,994,618

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software.Costs associated with the development of software are capitalized where it is probable that it
will generate future economic benefits in excess of its cost. Computer software costs are amortized on the basis of
expected useful life. Costs associated with maintaining software are recognized as an expense as incurred.Software
is amortised on a straight-line basis in profit or loss over its estimated useful life, from the date that it is available for
use. The estimated useful life of software for the current and comparative periods is five years.
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@/ Garima Bikas Bank Limited

4.16 Other Assets

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79
Assets held for Sale - = - .
Other Non-Banking Assets - - - -

Bills Receivable - - - _

Accounts Receivable 351,978,880 217,271,923 335,242,631 206,885,149
Accrued Income - - - -
Prepayments and Deposits 23,162,914 26,017,027 22,147,206 25,132,094
Income Tax Deposit - - - -
Deferred Employee Expenditure 241,707,704 247,972,978 241,706,980 247,912,189
Other 64,885,680 9,919,125 64,063,021 9,354,838

Stationery Stock 9,288,835 8,364,477 9,288,835 8,364,477

Commission Receivable = - - i
Escrow Investment 3 - - i

Security Deposit 54,880,686 1,096,862 54,774,186 990,362
Prepayments for Promotor Share S S = =
Others 716,159 457,787 - -
Grand Total 681,735,178 501,181,053 663,159,838 489,284,270

Accounts Receivable includes Bank balance available with PMS NRS 50,149,391.66 which has been received after
Balance sheet date.

4.17 Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79
Money Market Deposits - g - .

Interbank Borrowing s = - -
Other Deposits from BFls 2,104,520,294  2,035,638,564 2,104,520,294 2,035,638,564
Settlement and Clearing Accounts - = g -
Other Deposits from BFls E 5 - -
Total 2,104,520,294 2,035,638,564  2,104,520,294 2,035,638,564

The balances in accounts maintained with the Bank by other local financial institution have been presented under
this head.

4.18 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79
Refinance from NRB - 807,904,362 - 807,904,362
Standing Liquidity Facility - - - -

Lender of Last Resort facility from NRB - - - -
Securities sold under repurchase agreements - - - -

Other Payable to NRB - o - -
Total 807,904,362 807,904,362

A\
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4.19 Derivative Financial instruments

Group Bank

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79
Held for Trading

Interest Rate Swap - - o -

Currency Swap - = o -
Forward Exchange Contracts - o - 3
Others = o - -
Held for Risk Management
Interest Rate Swap - - 5 -
Currency Swap - = 5 -
Forward Exchange Contracts. - = - -
Others - o o -
Total - o - -

4.20 Deposits from customers

Group Bank
Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79
Institutions Customers: 18,317,293,610 = 18,595,940,299 18,334,762,110 18,610,281,790
Term deposits 12,730,803,195 | 12,913,983,191 | 12,748,271,695 12,928,324,682
Call deposits 4,836,785,918 | 4,996,974,008  4,836,785918  4,996,974,008
Current deposits 728,838,083 677,721,882 728,838,083 677,721,882
Other 20,866,414 7,261,218 20,866,414 7,261,218
Individual Customers: 58,629,396,120  49,799,930,651  58,629,396,120 49,799,930,651
Term deposits 39,884,008,869 | 33,335,999,653 | 39,884,008,869 @ 33,335,999,653
Saving deposits 18,377,095,463 | 16,135,148,568 = 18,377,095,463 16,135,148,568
Current deposits 362,791,001 326,753,252 362,791,001 326,753,252
Other 5,500,787 2,029,178 5,500,787 2,029,178
Total 76,946,689,730 68,395,870,950 = 76,964,158,230 68,410,212,441

Deposit from customer includes matured fixed deposits and good for payment payable as on reporting date.

4.20.1 Currency wise analysis of deposit from customers

Group Bank
Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79
Nepalese Rupee 76,946,689,730 = 68,395,870,950 76,964,158,230 | 68,410,212,441
Indian Rupee - - - -

United State dollar = = - -
Great Britain pound - = = -
Euro - = - -
Japenese yen - = - -
Chinese Yuan g . - -
Other . = - -
Total 76,946,689,730 68,395,870,950 76,964,158,230 68,410,212,441
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@/ Garima Bikas Bank Limited

4.21 Borrowings
Group Bank

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79

Domestic Borrowing

Nepal Government - = - -

Other Institutions 14,583,333 22,916,667 14,583,333 22,916,667
Other - - - -
Sub total 14,583,333 22,916,667 14,583,333 22,916,667

Foreign Borrowing

Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions - = - -
Multilateral Development Banks - = o -
Other institutions = = - -
Sub total = = - -
Total 14,583,333 22,916,667 14,583,333 22,916,667

4.22 Provisions
Group Bank

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79

Provisions for redundancy - . - .

Provision for restructuring - = - -
Pending legal issues and tax litigation - - - -
Onerous contracts - - - i
Other = 5 - i
Total = 5 - p

4.22.1 Movement in Provisions

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79
Balance at Shrawan 1 5 - - R

Provisions made during the year - - - -
Provisions used during the year - = _ -
Provisions reversed during the year - - - -
Unwind of discount - = - -
Balance at Ashad end - o o -
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4.23 Other Liabilities
Group Bank
2078-79 2079-80

Particulars

2078-79
Liabilities for employees defined benefit

obligations 51,420,764 4,218,463 51,268,593 4,218,463
Liabilities for leave 89,781,810 81,973,516 88,626,357 81,401,315
Short term employee benefits 517,442 553,972 192,851 192,851
Bills payable 1,151,861 3,101,365 997,340 3,101,365
Creditors and accruals 8,190,152 9,731,493 2,752,500 5,471,963
Interest payable on deposits 258,892,526 241,541,077 258,892,526 241,541,077
Interest payable on borrowing 43,996,803 53,150,801 43,996,803 53,150,801
Liabilities on deferred grant income - - - -
Unpaid Dividend 22,300,471 12,924,844 22,122,240 12,588,981
Liabilities under Finance Lease 306,600,709 343,614,294 306,600,709 343,614,294
Employee bonus payable 199,666,150 169,820,504 198,506,769 168,168,062
Other Liabilities 277,182,967 255,533,607 250,158,507 223,279,237

Audit Fee Payable 3,534,000 2,207,250 3,534,000 2,207,250

TDS Payable 60,710,908 70,743,020 60,359,124 69,974,567

Micro Finance Central Fund = = = =

Micro Finance Welfare Fund 63,297,084 61,817,964 63,297,084 61,817,964

Others 149,640,975 120,765,373 122,968,299 89,279,456
Total 1,259,701,656 1,176,163,937 1,224,115,196 1,136,728,408

Liabilities relating to employees benefits like liabilities for defined benefit obligation, gratuity, leave liabilities, short-
term employee benefits etc.,Creditors and accruals, unearned income, unpaid dividend etc. are presented under
this account head of other liabilities.

4.23.1. Defined Benefit Obligation

The amounts recognised in the statements of financials positions are as follows :

Group Bank

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79

Present value of unfunded obligations 248,642,582 197,285,845 247,334,958 196,713,643
Present value of funded obligations - - - -
Total present value of obligations 248,642,582 197,285,845 247,334,958 196,713,643
Fair value of plan assets 107,440,008 111,093,866 107,440,008 111,093,866
Present value of net obligations 141,202,574 86,191,979 139,894,950 85,619,777
izaergalE e IEtellisy ey cleinee Lemat 141,202,574 86,191,979 139,894,950 85,619,777

obligations

4.23.2: Plan Assets

Plan assets comprise

Particulars

2079-80

2078-79

2079-80

Equity securities
Government bonds

Bank deposit - - - -
Other 107,440,008 111,093,866 107,440,008 111,093,866
Total 107,440,008 111,093,866 107,440,008 111,093,866

y/
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Bank

2078-79

125,703,061
10,527,589
(7,913,491)
(2,507,048)
(4,250,307)

75,726,041

197,285,845

2078-79

196,713,643

17,345,764
(3,653,858)
(7,919,035)

44,848,444

247,334,958

Bank
2079-80

125,703,061
10,527,589
(7,913,491)
(2,507,048)
(4,250,307)

75,153,839

196,713,643

2078-79

75,971,122
37,629,792
(2,507,048)

8,417,924
(8,417,924)

Garima Bikas Bank Limited
4.23.3: Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations
Group

Particulars 2079-80

Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1 197,285,845
Transfer from Sahara Bikas Bank Ltd -
Actuarial losses 17,345,764
Benefits paid by the plan (3,653,858)
Benefits paid Directly (8,136,160)
gﬁ:;r?r;'ceizg\tllce costs; Past Service Cost 45,800,992
Defined benefit obligations at Ashad end 248,642,582

4.23.4: Movement in the fair value of plan assets
Group

Particulars 2079-80

Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1 111,093,866
Contributions paid into the plan -
Benefits paid during the year (3,653,858)
Interest Income 9,834,024
Expected return on plan assets (9,834,024)
Fair value of plan assets at Ashad end 107,440,008

4.23.5: Amount recognised in profit or loss
Group

111,093,866

111,093,866
(3,653,858)
9,834,024
(9,834,024)
107,440,008

Bank

75,971,122
37,629,792
(2,507,048)
8,417,924
(8,417,924)
111,093,866

Particulars 2079-80
Current service costs 53,270,901

Past service costs-(non Vested) -
Past service costs (Vested) -

Acturial (gain)/loss (14,819,332)
Interest on obligation 7,349,423
Expected return on plan assets

Total 45,800,992

4.23.6: Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

2078-79
31,371,469

33,345,378
11,009,194
8,417,924
67,308,117

2079-80
52,318,353

(14,819,332)
7,349,423

44,848,444

Bank

2078-79
30,799,267

33,345,378
11,009,194
8,417,924
66,735,915

Group
Particulars 2079-80
Acturial (gain)/loss 17,345,764
Total 17,345,764

4.23.7: Actuarial assumptions

2078-79
504,433
504,433

2078-79

2079-80
17,345,764
17,345,764

Bank
2079-80

2078-79
504,433
504,433

2078-79

Group
Particulars 2079-80
Discount rate 10%
Future salary increase 4%
Withdrawal rate 5%

A\

9%
4%
5%

10%
4%
5%

9%
4%
5%
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4.24 Debt secutities issued
Group Bank

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79

Debt securities issued designated as at fair
value through profit or loss

Debt securities issued at amortised cost 995,089,258 994,221,509 995,089,258 994,221,509
Total 995,089,258 994,221,509 995,089,258 994,221,509

4.25 Subordinated Liabilities
Group Bank

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79

Redeemable preference shares = = - -

Irredemable cumulative preference shares
(liabilities component)

Other - - - -
Total

4.26 Share Capital

Group Bank
Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79
Ordinary Shares 5,187,687,057 | 4,579,892,402  5,187,687,057  4,579,892,402
Convertible Preference Shares (Equity i i i g
component)

Irredemable Preference Shares (Equity
component)

Perpetual debt (Equity component only) - - - -
Total 5,187,687,057 4,579,892,402 5,187,687,057 4,579,892,402

4.26.1 Share capital detail

Bank
Particulars | 2079-80 | 2078-79
Authorised capital
52,500,000 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each 5,250,000,000 5,000,000,000
Issued Capital
45,798,924.02 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 78/79) 4,579,892,402
51,876,870.57 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 79/80) 5,187,687,057
Suscribed and paid up capital
45,798,924.02 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 78/79) 4,579,892,402
51,876,870.57 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 79/80) 5,187,687,057
Total 5,187,687,057 4,579,892,402

The reconcilation of the number of share outstanding and the amount of share capital as at 31st Ashad 2080 and
32nd Ashad 2079 is as follows:
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4.26.2. Share Capital Reconciliation

Bank
2079-80 2078-79

Particulars
Number Amount Number Amount

Number/ Amount of shares outstanding

at the beginning of the period 45,798,924  4,579,892,402 36,759,125 3,675,912,501
Transfer from Sahara Bikas Bank Ltd. - - 2,722,706 272,270,604
Add: Bonus shares issued 5,968,136 596,813,555 6,317,092.97 631,709,297
Add: Right share issued 109,811 10,981,100 - -

Add/(Less): Others adjustments - = - -

Number/ Amount of share at the end of

the period 51,876,871 5,187,687,057 45,798,924 4,579,892,402

4.26.3 Ordinary Share Ownership
Bank

_ | 2079-80 | 207
Particulars T

‘ % of holding Amount ‘ % of holding Amount
Domestic ownership 100.00% @ 5,187,687,057 100.00% @ 4,579,892,402

Nepal Government - = - ;

“A" Class licenced institutions - - - -
Other Licenced institutions - - - -
Other institutions & individuals - - - -
Public 51.00%  2,645,720,453 49.12% 2,249,527,970
Other 49.00% = 2,541,966,604 50.88% 2,330,364,433
Foreign Ownership - - - -
Total 100.00% 5,187,687,057 100.00% 4,579,892,402

List of Shareholder holding more than 0.5% of Shares

Current Year ‘ Previous Year

Name of Shareholders T PV

Amount ‘ % Amount
Pradip Kumar Roongta 2.38 1,233,226.15 2.38 1,091,350.57
Chandra Kanta Baral 1.79 926,106.30 1.79 819,563.10
Shyam Prasad Basyal 1.63 848,078.91 1.63 750,512.30
Chhabilal Kunwar 1.39 719,605.68 1.39 636,819.18
Prem Bahadur G.C 1.14 592,356.76 0.87 398,971.09
Aananda Prasad Shrestha 0.98 510,651.63 0.98 451,901.08
Anish Mudvari 0.97 502,454.74 0.94 432,303.85
Deependra Shrestha 0.92 475,608.68 0.92 420,892.64
Yajanlal Shakya 0.91 473,101.24 0.91 417,512.66
Jamuna Kafle 0.83 428,854.14 0.82 379,516.94
Shiva Prasad Katuwal Chhetri(K.C) 0.82 426,088.72 0.82 377,069.67
Rama Kanta Baral 0.79 408,230.74 0.79 362,534.29
Gauri Shrestha 0.74 381,628.06 0.7 321,089.15
Himanshu Khadka 0.73 381,132.91 0.73 335,069.76
Sher Bahadur Budhathoki 0.68 353,216.80 0.68 312,581.24
Rabindra Raj Joshi 0.68 352,116.54 0.68 311,607.56
Yadhav Kuamr Shrestha 0.68 351,504.94 0.68 311,066.91

A\
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Current Year
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Previous Year

Karna Bahadur Shrestha
Hari Kumar Shrestha
Bhagawati Devi Pathak
Raghupati Lamsal

Ram Prasad Shrestha

4.27 Reserves

0.64
0.63
0.56
0.55
0.50

Amount
330,224.97
328,761.52
290,988.32
287,557.51
259,647.50

%
0.64
0.63
0.56
0.55
0.52

292,234.49
289,420.82
257,511.79
254,475.68
239,722.72

Particulars

Statutory general reserve
Exchange equilisation reserve
Corporate social responsibility reserve
Capital redemption reserve
Regulatory reserve

Investment adjustment reserve
Capital reserve

Assets revaluation reserve

Fair value reserve

Dividend Equalisation Reserve
Actuarial gain/(Loss) Reserve
Special reserve

Other reserve

Total

4.28 Contingent liabilities and commitments

Group
2079-80 2078-79
1,221,205,014 968,269,798
1,023,699 160,282
18,783,399 13,777,578
166,666,667 -
653,970,567 325,020,386
= 1,584,000
6,525,709 6,525,709
51,423,703 43,880,625
(25,219,823) (13,077,788)
10,879,298 276,122
2,105,258,233 1,346,416,711
Group

Bank
2079-80 2078-79
1,221,205,014 968,269,798
1,023,699 160,282
18,783,399 13,777,578
166,666,667 -
653,970,567 325,020,386
- 1,584,000
46,077,210 43,880,625
(25,219,823) (13,077,788)
10,879,298 276,122
2,093,386,031 1,339,891,002
Bank

Particulars

Contingent liabilities

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities
Capital commitment

Lease Commitment

Litigation

Total

4.28.1: Contingent Liabilities

Particulars

2079-80
192,243,229
1,050,779,186

1,243,022,415

Group

2078-79
467,178,529

1,189,115,857

1,656,294,386

2078-79

2079-80
192,243,229
1,050,779,186

2078-79
467,178,529
1,189,115,857

Acceptance and documentary credit
Bills for collection

Forward exchange contracts
Guarantees

Underwriting commitment

Other commitments

Total

1,860,464

21,457,000

168,925,765

192,243,229

21,875,892

258,852,637
186,450,000
467,178,529

1,243,022,415 1,656,294,386
Bank
2079-80
1,860,464 21,875,892
21,457,000 258,852,637
168,925,765 186,450,000
192,243,229 467,178,529

y/
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4.28.2: Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

Group Bank
Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79
Undisbursed amount of loans - - - -
Undrawn limits of overdrafts 1,050,779,186  1,189,115,857  1,050,779,186  1,189,115,857

Undrawn limits of credit cards - = - .
Undrawn limits of letter of credit - = o .
Undrawn limits of guarantee - - o -
Total 1,050,779,186 1,189,115,857 1,050,779,186 1,189,115,857

4.28.3: Capital commitments
Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been made in financial state-
ments.

Group Bank

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79

Capital commitments in relation to
Property and Equipment

Approved and contracted for = - u -
Approved but not contracted for - 5 - L
Sub total 5 5 - g

Capital commitments in relation to
Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for - - - X
Approved but not contracted for - 5 - i
Sub total - 5 5 i
Total - 5 5 L

4.28.4: Lease commitments
Group Bank

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79

Operating lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under
non cancellable
operating lease, where the bank is lessee

Not later than 1 year - = - -
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - - = -
Later than 5 years = = - -
Sub total - - = -

Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under
non cancellable operating lease, where
the bank is lessee

Not later than 1 year g = - -
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - - = =
Later than 5 years - = = -
Sub total - = = -
Grand total - = - -

A\




4.28.5: Litigation

There is no any significant litigation that would affect the financial position of Bank.

4.29 Interest Income

Bank
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Particulars

Cash and cash equivalent

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with bank and financial insti-
tutions

Loan and advances to bank and financial
institutions

Loans and advances to customers
Investment securities

Loan and advances to staff

Other Interest Income

Total interest income

4.30 Interest Expense

Particulars

63,339,722

462,196,063

9,323,728,199
763,071,573
31,734,758
39,133,701
10,683,204,016

Bank

2079-80

56,032,557

260,511,503

7,191,901,685
405,574,399
20,591,921
13,634,685
7,948,246,751

2078-79

Due to bank and financial institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
Deposits from customers
Borrowing

Debt securities issued
Subordinated liabilities
Other Charges

Total Interest expense

4.31 Fees and commission income

Group
2078-79
63,339,722 56,032,557
5,600 584,597
462,196,063 260,511,503
9,323,728,199  7,191,901,685
766,298,580 405,574,399
31,763,482 20,690,020
39,167,045 15,719,746
10,686,498,691 7,951,014,509
Group
2079-80 2078-79
37,613,597 32,732,003
7,134,458 55,301,370
7,269,220,576 = 5,190,998,161
10,565,568 16,008,014
88,367,746 46,390,337
7,554,778 10,660,147

7,420,456,724 5,352,090,033

Group

34,183,114

7,134,458
7,271,410,065
10,565,568
88,367,746

7,554,778

31,743,601

55,301,370
5,194,280,728
16,008,014
46,390,337

10,660,147

7,419,215,729 5,354,384,198

Bank

Particulars

Loan administration fees
Service fees

Consortium fees
Commitment fees
DD/TT/Swift fees

Credit card/ATM issuance and renewal fees
Renewal fees

Prepayment and swap fees
Investment banking fees
Asset management fees
Brokerage fees

Remittance fees

221,710,877

26,748,332
30,084,290
12,132,627

7,570,392

205,367,262

14,469,611
30,153,589
13,189,049

9,094,266

203,733,606

26,748,332
30,084,290
12,132,627

7,570,392

2078-79

197,895,503

14,469,611
30,153,589
12,939,521

9,094,266

y/




oI faoe= ¥ fifids v/

Garima Bikas Bank Limited

Bank

Particulars

Commission on letter of credit
Commission on guarantee contracts issued

Commission on share underwriting/issue

Locker rental
Other fees and commision income
Total Fees and Commission Income

4.32 Fees and commission Expense

Particulars

2079-80

6,726,139

596,500
118,007,330
423,576,486

Group

2079-80

2078-79

6,301,583

441,250
88,011,405
367,028,014

2078-79

2079-80

6,726,139
596,500
118,007,330
405,599,215

Bank

2079-80

2078-79

6,301,583

441,250
88,011,405
359,306,727

2078-79

ATM management fees

VISA/Master card fees

Guarantee commission

Brokerage

DD/TT/Swift fees.

Remittance fees and commission
Other fees and commission expense
Total Fees and Commission Expense

4.33 Net Trading Income

22,704,389
22,704,389

Group

18,459,993
18,459,993

19,193,220
19,193,220

Bank

15,565,920
15,565,920

Particulars

Changes in fair value of trading assets
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets
Interest income on trading assets
Dividend income on trading assets
Gain/loss foreign exchange transaction
Other

Net Trading Income

4.34 Other Operating Income

Particulars

2079-80
(3,360,090)
7,413,565

14,999,815

19,053,290

Group

2078-79

314,312

314,312

2078-79

2079-80

14,999,815

14,999,815

Bank

2078-79

314,312

314,312

Foreign exchange revaluation gain/(Loss)
Gain/loss on sale of investment securities

Fair value gain/loss on investment properties
Dividend on equity instruments
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment
Gain/loss on sale of investment property
Operating lease income

Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver
Other Operating Income

Total

A\

3,453,669
11,226,579
21,658,148

3,478,049

(5,345,982)
34,470,464

(107,618)
(3,060,289)
70,727,527

714,295

1,415,635
69,689,550

3,453,669
11,226,579
20,488,046

3,478,049

(5,345,982)
33,300,362

(107,618)
43,197,370
68,584,811

714,295

1,415,635
113,804,493
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4.35 Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses

Group Bank

Particulars

2079-80

2078-79

2079-80

2078-79

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and
advances to BFls

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and
advances to customers

Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial
Investment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on
placement with BFls

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property
and equipment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill
and intangible assets

Impairment charge/(reversal) on
investment properties

Impairment charge/(reversal) on Other
Assets

Total

4.36 Personnel Expenses

Particulars

426,156,948

(12,885,509)

413,271,440

Group

172,760,393

172,760,393

2078-79

426,156,948

(12,885,509)

413,271,440

Bank

172,760,393

172,760,393

Salary

Allowances

Gratuity Expense

Provident Fund

Uniform

Training & development expense
Leave encashment

Medical

Insurance

Employees incentive
Cash-settled share-based payments
Pension expense

Finance expense under NFRS
Other expenses related to staff
Subtotal

Employees bonus

Grand Total

410,420,170
195,691,714
30,137,486
37,132,385
8,192,000
7,422,818
26,249,855
926,466
197,000

7,687,536
724,057,431
198,506,769
922,564,201

369,403,937
178,235,178
23,038,886
33,332,360
7,842,633
2,293,275
47,546,482
438,208
295,000

3,963,108
2,313,530
668,702,599
168,168,062
836,870,661

397,957,105
195,087,714
29,768,190
36,942,125
8,192,000
7,188,168
25,666,604
926,466
197,000

7,687,536
709,612,908
198,506,769
908,119,677

363,241,888
178,235,178
23,038,886
32,912,675
7,772,633
2,293,275
47,546,482
438,208
295,000

3,963,108
2,313,530
662,050,866
168,168,062
830,218,927
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4.37 Other Operating Expenses
Group Bank

Particulars

A\

2079-80

2078-79

2079-80

2078-79

Directors’ fee 1,219,500 1,483,000 1,033,500 1,293,000
Directors’ expense 2,698,085 1,461,968 2,595,527 1,441,324
Auditors’ remuneration 5,708,000 1,894,250 5,568,000 1,759,250
Other audit related expense 1,400 4,071,957 1,400 4,071,750
Professional and legal expense 435,151 781,337 412,551 563,299
Office administration expense (4.37 A) 186,365,955 97,189,835 181,931,585 93,822,876
Operating Lease expense (4.37 B) 115,098,524 189,025,871 114,313,050 188,750,582
Operating expense of investment properties = = = =
Corporate social responsibility expense 7,640,940 6,927,168 7,640,940 6,927,168
Onerous lease provisions . = = =
Other Expenses 140,923,074 110,855,997 140,492,195 110,512,938
Repair & Maintenance Vehicle 2,483,721 2,243,482 2,483,721 2,243,482
Repair & Maintenance Others 4,011,287 4,068,695 3,922,383 4,020,623
Repair & Maint.. Office Equipment & Furniture 2,276,358 1,365,575 2,276,358 1,365,575
Share Issue Expenses 4,304,403 778,281 4,304,403 778,281
Deposit Premium 28,253,166 20,523,881 28,253,166 20,523,881
Branch Connectivity Expense 10,818,445 11,851,259 10,476,471 11,556,271
Debenture Related Expense - 2,166,414 - 2,166,414
Finance Cost on Lease Liability 30,334,381 26,376,991 30,334,381 26,376,991
ATM Operation & Digital Banking Expense 58,441,313 41,481,421 58,441,313 41,481,421
Total 460,090,629 413,691,385 453,988,749 409,142,187
4.37 (A) Ofice Administration Expenses
Group Bank
Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79
Insurance 7,723,859 7,448,757 7,679,235 7,427,528
Postage, Telephone, 5,938,681 6,784,159 5,249,387 6,353,050
Printing & Stationery 22,379,678 19,544,836 22,196,650 19,104,553
Newspaper & Periodicals 39,845 77,697 39,845 73,913
Advertisements 17,124,102 12,991,416 16,024,097 12,731,143
Security Expenses 79,153,095 73,966,276 78,846,900 73,814,275
Travelling Expenses 3,938,235 4,449,470 3,824,325 4,106,379
Fuel Expenses 12,666,984 9,510,419 12,666,984 9,510,419
Entertainment = = = =
AGM Expenses 3,099,749 3,547,974 2,901,147 3,124,594
Annual Fee 17,339,234 13,601,925 17,185,582 13,409,250
Office Expenses 16,170,634 14,342,990 14,859,924 13,385,349
Miscelleneous Expenses 791,862 4,890,192 457,509 4,596,699
Total 186,365,955 171,156,112 181,931,585 167,637,151
4.37 (B) Operating Lease Expenses
Group Bank
Particulars 2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79
House Rent Expenses 88,880,956 91,131,819 88,373,740 91,118,226
Electricity Expenses 26,217,568 23,927,776 25,939,310 23,818,081
Total 115,098,524 115,059,595 114,313,050 114,936,307
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4.38 Depreciation and Amortisation

Particulars

Depreciation on property and equipment
Depreciation on investment property
Depreciation on Right of Use Asset
Amortisation of intangible assets

Total

4.39 Non Operating Income

Particulars

Recovery of Loan written off
Other Income
Total

4.40 Non Operating expense

Particulars

Group Bank
2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79
159,396,314 105,058,524 157,057,186 102,556,873
3,378,278 42,488,979 - 42,488,979
3,553,657 3,402,254 3,382,431 3,314,303
166,328,249 150,949,756 160,439,617 148,360,155
Group Bank
2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79
250,000 = 250,000 =
23,632,078 22,328,494 23,435,948 22,272,052
23,882,078 22,328,494 23,685,948 22,272,052
Group Bank

2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79

Loan written off
Redundancy provision
Expense of restructuring
Other expense.

Total

4.41 Income Tax Expenses

Particulars

Current Tax Expenses

Current Year

Adjustment for Prior Years

Deferred tax Expenses

Origination and Reversal of Temporary Differences
Change in tax Rate

Recognition of Previously unrecognized Tax Losses

Total Income tax expense

4.41.1: Reconciliation of Tax Expenses and Accounting Profit

Particulars

Group Bank
2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79
553,419,388 473,952,935 553,419,388 473,956,587
553,419,388 473,952,935 553,419,388 473,956,587
(33,153,397) (4,583,432)  (31,534,546) 9,541,974
(33,153,397) (4,583,432) (31,534,546) 9,541,974
520,265,991 469,369,504 521,884,842 483,498,562
Group Bank

2079-80 2078-79 2079-80 2078-79

Profit Before Tax
Tax Amount at the Rate of 30%

Add: Tax Effect of the expenses that are
not deductible for tax purpose

Less: Tax Effect on Exempt Income
Add/Less: Tax Effect on other Items
Total Income Tax Expenses
Effective Tax Rate

1,782,065,377 | 1,465,552,658  1,786,560,924 = 1,513,512,554
534,619,613 439,241,107 535,968,277 453,629,076
108,212,361 105,763,645 108,212,361 105,763,645
(304,046) (314,309) (304,046) (314,309)
(89,108,540) (70,737,507) (90,457,204) (85,121,824)
553,419,388 473,952,936 553,419,388 473,956,587
31.05% 32.34% 30.98% 31.32%

y/
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Garima Bikas Bank Limited
Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
As on 31st Ashad 2080
(As per NRB Regulation)

Bank

S R S

Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss 1,264,676,082 1,030,013,992
Appropriations:
a. General reserve (252,935,216) (206,002,798)
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund (863,417) 107,618
c. Capital redemption reserve (166,666,667) -
d. Corporate social responsibility fund (12,646,761) (10,300,140)
e. Employees’ training fund (17,791,345) -
f. Other = =
Investment Adjustment Reserve 1,584,000 =
Corporate social responsibility fund utilization 7,640,940 6,927,168
Employees’training fund utilization 7,188,168 =
Unrealised Gain on Investment in Associates 5,345,982 (1,415,635)
Other Adjustment/restatement = (49,445,739)
Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment 835,531,767 769,884,467
Regulatory adjustment :
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) (154,622,817) (86,585,541)
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+) - -
¢. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+) - -
d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+) (94,975,010) 2,120,435
e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+) (18,250,647) =

f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)
g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+)

(12,142,035)

(92,311,741)

h. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+) 806,733
i. Other (+/-) (48,959,673) -
Distributable profit or (loss) 506,581,586 593,914,352
Opening Retained Earning as on Shrawan 584,442,111 624,267,904
Adjustment(+/-) 5 (8,796,169)
Distribution

Bonus Share Issued (504,501,814) (624,943,977)
Cash Dividend Paid (68,863,103) -
Total Distributable Profit or (Loss) as on end Date 517,658,780 584,442,111
Annualised Distributable Profit/Loss per Share 9.98 12.76
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5. Disclosures and Additional Information

5.1 Risk Management

Risk Management structure of the Bank has set clear separation between businesses function and risk management
function. Accordingly, the Bank has set up a separate Risk Management & Compliance Department. The department
oversees the risk that arise out of daily business operation as well as on periodic basis and are put to the oversight of
Top Management, Risk Management Committee and the Board to discuss the reports thereon and issue instructions
as appropriate.

i. Risk Management Committee

Board of Directors is the apex and supreme authority of the Bank and is responsible to frame and implement robust
policies and framework for effective compliance of regulation and direction issued by the regulatory authority. The
board understands the nature of risk of the bank, and periodically reviews reports on risk management, including
policies and standards, stress testing, liquidity and capital adequacy through the reporting by the Risk Management
Committee and the Asset- Liabilities Management Committee.

Pursuant to the NRB directive on corporate governance, the Bank has established Risk Management Committee with
well-defined terms of reference in line the NRB directive. The committee supervises overall risk management of the
Bank broadly classified as liquidity risk, market risk, operational risk and credit risk.

ii. Risk Governance

Bank has prepared and implemented policies and procedures to mitigate the risk at enterprises level arising to the
bank and has inculcated risk culture among the employees by establishing ownership mentality, capacity building
programs, well defined job responsibilities and inhabiting good ethical culture.

Through its Risk Management Framework, the Bank seeks to efficiently manage credit, market and liquidity risks
which arise directly through the Bank’s commercial activities as well as operational, regulatory and reputational risks
which arise as a normal consequence of any business undertaking.

The Assets and Liabilities Committee is responsible for the management of capital and establishment of, and
compliance with, policies relating to balance sheet management, including management of liquidity, capital
adequacy and structural foreign exchange and interest rate exposure and tax exposure.

The bank’s risk governance structure is such that the responsibility for maintaining risk within the banks risk blanket
is cascaded down from the Board to the appropriate functional, client business, senior management and committees.
Information regarding material risk issues and compliance with policies and standards is communicated through the
business, functional, senior management and committees.

iii. Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring the Bank has appropriate internal control framework in place that supports the
achievement of the strategies and objectives. The various functions of the Bank should be looked upon with a view to
establish a proper control mechanismiis in place during expansion and growth which enables it to maximize profitable
business opportunities, avoid or reduce risks which can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations and enhance resilience to external events.

The effectiveness of the Company's internal control system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its Committees,
Management and Internal Auditors.

The Internal Audit monitors compliance with policies/standards and the effectiveness of internal control structures
across the Bank through regular audit, special audit, information system audit, Off Site review. The audit observations
are reported to the Management for initiating immediate corrective measures. Internal Audit reports are periodically
forwarded to the Audit Committee for review and the committee issues appropriate corrective action in accordance
with the issue involved to the management.

5.1.1 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the probability of loss of principle and reward associated with it due to failure of counterparty to
meet its contractual obligations to pay the Bank in accordance with agreed terms. The Credit Risk Monitoring
and Reporting Framework/ have been prepared in order to mitigate/ minimize the credit risk of the Bank through
appropriate monitoring and reporting framework established within the Bank.

y/
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Bank has implemented various System/ Policies/ Procedures/ Guidelines for the effective management of Credit
Risk. For the purpose of assessment of credit risk of the bank, following activities were carried out:

« Current system/policies/procedures/ guidelines formulated were gone through;
« Actual Exposure of credit limit product wise, segment wise were checked periodically;

« Review of various reports prepared by the Departments such as Loan Utilization Report, Loan Overdue Report,
Loan Report, and NRB reports.

Credit Risk Management is ultimately the responsibility of the Board of Directors. Hence Overall strategy as well
as significant policies has to be reviewed by the board regularly. Further, Top Management is responsible for
implementing the bank's credit risk management strategies and policies and ensuring that procedures are put
in place to manage and control credit risk and the quality of credit portfolio in accordance with these policies.

5.1.2 Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: foreign exchange rates (currency risk), market
interest rates (interest rate risk) and market prices (price risk).

i.  Currency Risk:

Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Bank to experience volatility in the value of its assets, liabilities and
solvency and to suffer actual financial losses as a result of changes in value between the currencies of its assets
and liabilities and its reporting currency.

ii. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.

iii.  Price Risk
Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are

caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or by factors affecting all similar
financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company's equity price risk exposure relates to financial investment held at FVTOCI, whose values fluctuate
as a result of changes in market prices.

5.1.3 Liquidity Risk

Bank recognize Market Risk as the possibility for loss of earnings or economic value to the Bank caused due to
adverse changes in the market level of interest rates or prices of securities (equity), foreign exchange rates and
commodity price fluctuation, as well as the volatilities, of those prices. While Liquidity risk is chances of failure of a
bank to meet obligations as they become due. Effective liquidity risk management helps ensure the Bank's ability
to meet its obligations as they fall due without adversely affecting the Bank's financial condition and reduces the
probability of developing of an adverse situation.

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of
the possibility that the Bank might be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due as a result of
mismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress circumstances. Such scenarios could
occur when funding needed for illiquid asset positions is not available to the Bank on acceptable terms. To
minimize this risk, management has arranged for diversified funding sources in addition to its core deposit base
and adopted a policy of managing assets with liquidity in mind and monitoring future cash flows and liquidity
on a daily basis. The Bank has developed internal control processes and contingency plans for managing liquidity
risk. This incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows and the availability of high grade collateral which
could be used to secure additional funding as required.

A\
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5.2 Capital Management

5.2.1 Qualitative disclosures

The Capital Adequacy calculation is mainly guided by the Capital Adequacy Framework 2007 (Updated July 2008)
as published by Nepal Rastra Bank. The Bank has formulated the "Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
which has been approved by the Board of Directors. The ICAAP is a system of sound, effective, and complete
strategies and processes that allows the Bank to assess and maintain, ongoing basis, the amounts, types and
distribution of internal capital that the Bank considers adequate to cover the nature and level of risk to which the
Bank is or might be exposed to.

5.2.2 Quantitative disclosures

a) Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy

i.  Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components NPR in “000”

S. No. ‘ Particulars ‘ 2079/80 ‘ 2078/79
A Core Capital (Tier 1) 6,927,805 6,170,955
Paid up Equity Share Capital 5,187,687 4,579,892
Irredeemable Non-cumulative preference shares - -

Share Premium 4,415 -
Proposed Bonus Equity Shares = =
Statutory General Reserves 968,270 762,266
Retained Earnings 11,077 4,215
Un-audited current year cumulative profit/(loss) 1,004,682 980,596

Capital Redemption Reserve - -
Capital Adjustment Reserve - -
Debenture Redemption Reserve - -
Dividend Equalization Reserves - -
Other Free Reserve - -
Less: Goodwill 92,312 -
Less: Fictitious Assets - -
Less: Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions - -
Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests 123,900 123,900
Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits = =
Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments = =

SlalJlalalzglaisziale|lo|N|ovn|s|w|n

Less: Reciprocal crossholdings = =

20 Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized 32,115 32,115
21 Less: Other Deductions - -
ii. Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components NPR in “000"
S.No. | Particulars | 2079/80 | 2078/79
B Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) 2,074,159 1,954,529
1 Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share = =
2 Subordinated Term Debt 1,000,000 1,000,000
3 Hybrid Capital Instruments - -
4 General loan loss provision 1,072,575 952,945
5 Exchange Equalization Reserve = =
6 Investment Adjustment Reserve 1,584 1,584
7 Asset Revaluation Reserve - -
8 Other Reserves - -

y/
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iii. Deductions from Capital NPR in “000”
S. No. ‘ Particulars ‘ 2079/80 ‘ 2078/79
1 Investment in Equity of institutions with Financial interests* 123,900 123,900
2 Intangible Assets i.e. Goodwill 92,312 -
3 Land 32,115 32,115
Total 248,327 156,015

*Investment made in Bank's subsidiary, Garima Capital Limited

iv. Total Qualifying Capital NPR in “000”
S.No. | Particulars | 2079/80 2078/79
1 Core Capital (Tier 1) 6,927,805 6,170,955
2 Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) 2,074,159 1,954,529
Total 9,001,964 8,125,484
v. Capital Adequacy Ratios
Particulars | 2079/80 |  2078/79
Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustments of Pillar II) 10.54% 10.24%
Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures(After Bank's adjustments
of Pillar ) 13.69% 13.48%
vi. Credit Risk weighted exposures under each 11 categories of Credit Risk (NPRin‘000")
S. No. ‘ Particulars ‘ 2079/80
1 Claims on government and central Bank =
2 Claims on other official entities 795,801
3 Claims on Banks 1,342,347
4 Claims on corporate and securities firm 8,786,542
5 | Claims on regulatory retail portfolio - not overdue 22,601,667
6 Claim secured by residential properties 3,376,193
7 Claims secured by commercial real state 2,686,327
8 Past due Claims 3,471,792
9 High risk claims 16,065,570
10 | Other Assets 1,166,446
11 | Off Balance sheet Items 318,565
Total Credit Risk Weighted Exposures 60,611,249




vi. Risk weighted exposure for Operational Risk

S. No. | Particulars
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—_

Net Interest Income

Commission and Discount Income

Other Operating Income

Exchange Fluctuation Income

Addition/Deduction in Interest Suspense during the period
Gross income (a)

Alfa (b)

Fixed Percentage of Gross Income [c=(axb)]

OW 0 N & i »h W N

Capital Requirement for operational risk (d) (average of c)

-y
o

Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 10%) in times (e)

11 | Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [f=(dxe)]

viii. Risk weighted exposure for Market Risk

‘ Amount in “000”
1,380,669
28,373
270,611

20,768
1,700,421
15.00%
255,063
320,499
10
3,204,989

Currency Open Position (FCY) Exchange Rate Open Position (NPR)
1 INR 6,632 160.00 1,061,120
2 usD 42,629 131.54 5,607,206
3 GBP 6,325 172.26 1,089,513
4 EUR 173,080 147.66 25,556,127
5 THB 20,460 3.79 77,543
6 CHF 600 152.39 91,434
7 AUD 4,170 90.28 376,468
8 CAD 860 99.63 85,678
9 SGD 8,123 99.68 809,660
10 JPY 987,000 0.95 935,380
11 HKD 5,490 16.82 92,314
12 DKK 11,750 19.82 232,885
14 SEK = 12.82 =
15 SAR 176,573 34.93 6,166,812
16 QAR 26,722 35.99 961,725
17 AED 9,730 35.72 347,556
18 MYR 110,076 29.08 3,200,460
19 KRW 852,000 0.10 88,352
20 CNY 15,228 18.41 280,347
21 KWD 422 428.47 180,814
(a) Total Open Position 47,362,726

(b) Fixed Percentage
(c) Capital Charge for Market Risk (=axb)
(d) Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 10%) in times

(e) Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure (=cxd)

Relevant Open Position

1,061,120
5,607,206
1,089,513
25,556,127
77,543
91,434
376,468
85,678
809,660
935,380
92,314
232,885
6,166,812
961,725
347,556
3,200,460
88,352
280,347
180,814
47,362,726
5%
2,368,136
10
23,681,363

y/
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ix. Total Risk Weighted Exposure Calculation Table
Risk Weighted Exposure

Credit Risk Exposure
Operational Risk Exposure
Market Risk Exposure
Adjustments in Pillar Il

Add: 2 % of RWE as Supervisory Haircut( Overall Risk Management Not Satisfactory)
Add: 1 % of RWE as Supervisory Haircut ( Desired Level Of Disclosure Not Achieved)
Total Risk Weighted Exposures

Total Core Capital

Total Capital Fund (Tier 1 and Tier 2)

Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustments of Pillar II)

Amount in“000”

Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustments of Pillar I1)

x. Types of eligible risk mitigants used and the benefits under CRM

S. No. ‘ Particulars

1 Deposit with Banks
Deposit with other banks/financial institution
Gold
Government and NRB Securities
Guarantee of Government of Nepal
Securities/Guarantee of other Sovereigns
Guarantee of Domestic Banks
Guarantee of Multilateral Development Banks

O 00 N O Lt W N

Guarantee of Foreign Banks

Total Credit Risk Mitigants

xi) Movement in Loan Loss Provision and Interest Suspense

Particulars ‘ Current Year ‘ Previous Year
Loan Loss Provision 1,643,397,131 1,217,240,183
Interest Suspense 576,686,185 299,839,730

xii. Ratio of Non-Performing Assets as per regulatory classification
Particulars
NPL to Total Loans & Advances
NPL to Net Loans & Advances
NPL to Loan Loss Provision

60,611,249
3,204,989
23,681

1,276,682
638,341
65,754,943
6,927,805
9,001,964
10.54%
13.69%

NPR in “000”
Ashad 2080
997,715

997,062

1,994,777

Change

Amount

%

426,156,948 25.93%
276,846,455 48.01%

Percentage
1.70%
1.75%

67.89%
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xiii. Segregation of Investment Portfolio

Particulars ‘ Amount in NPR
Government Bond 11,079,117,321
Government treasury bills 2,230,824,750
Nepal Rastra Bank deposit instruments 1,000,000,000
Investment Securities measured at amortized cost (i) 14,309,942,071
Quoted equity securities 580,326,583
Unquoted equity securities 28,279,850
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI (ii) 608,606,433
Total (i+ii) 14,918,548,503

xiv. Subordinated Term Debt

Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments specially in case of subordinated
term debts including hybrid capital instruments

Particulars ‘ Information

Name 8.75% Garima Debenture, 2085

Interest Rate 8.75% per annum (before tax) payable half yearly

Type Unsecured and Redeemable at Maturity, No Call/Convertible feature

At the time of liquidation, priority of Debenture Holders payment will be

LAl s eentlireinol ders after the depositors and secured creditors

Listing Listed with Nepal Stock Exchange
Maturity Date Poush 2085

Number of Debentures 1,000,000.00 (One Million Only)
Face Value NPR 1,000

Closing Balance of Debenture NPR. 995,089,258

Amount Eligible for Tier 2 Capital Fund (net of

Redemption Reserve) NPR. 833,333,333

Compliance with external requirement

The bank has complied with the externally imposed capital requirements during the reporting period.

xv. Summary of the bank's internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to support current and
future activities, if applicable;

The bank also takes into consideration these risk factors during assessment of ICCAP. The bank's internal Capital
Adequacy Assessment Process (ICCAP) involves assessment of actual capacity of the Bank, additional capital
requirement in relation to the existing risk profile of the bank and additional capital requirement in relation to the
business growth of the bank.
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5.3 Classification of Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities

Particulars

Financial Year 2079/080

Group

Cash in hand

Balances with B/Fls

Money at call and short notice
Interbank placement

Balance at NRB

Derivative financial instrument
Loans & Advances
Government bonds
Government treasury bills
NRB deposit instrument
Equity investments

Other assets

Total Financial Assets

Deposits from customers

Due to Banks & Financial Institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Banks
Debt Securities

Borrowings

Employee related liabilities
Bills payable

Creditors and accruals

Interest payable on deposit
Interest payable on borrowing
Unpaid Dividend

Liabilities under Finance Lease

Other liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities

Amortized Cost FVTPL

Financial Assets

892,948,441 -
3,696,282,374 -
15,000,000 -
2,961,796,053 -
66,575,064,912 -
11,079,117,321 =
2,230,824,750 -
1,000,000,000 -
- 127,347,288
442,622,480 -
88,893,656,330 127,347,288

Financial Liabilities
76,946,689,730 -
2,104,520,294 S
995,089,258 -
14,583,333 -
341,386,166 -
1,151,861 s
8,190,152 -
258,892,526 -
43,996,803 -
22,300,471 -
306,600,709 -
278,291,425 -
81,321,692,729 -

FVTOCI

608,611,268

608,611,268

892,948,441
3,696,282,374
15,000,000
2,961,796,053
66,575,064,912
11,079,117,321
2,230,824,750
1,000,000,000
735,958,556
442,622,480
89,629,614,886

76,946,689,730
2,104,520,294
995,089,258
14,583,333
341,386,166
1,151,861
8,190,152
258,892,526
43,996,803
22,300,471
306,600,709
278,291,425
81,321,692,729




/ alfsiee afdazat
3Il . 20\9%/0c0

‘ Financial Year 2079/080

Particulars ‘ Bank
‘ Amortized Cost FVTPL FVTOCI
Financial Assets
Cash in hand 892,894,684 = = 892,894,684
Balances with B/Fls 3,709,978,964 - - 3,709,978,964

Money at call and short notice
Interbank placement

Balance at NRB

Derivative financial instrument
Loans & Advances
Government bonds
Government treasury bills

NRB deposit instrument
Equity investments

Other assets

Total Financial Assets

Deposits from customers

Due to Banks & Financial Institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Banks
Debt Securities

Borrowings

Employee related liabilities
Bills payable

Creditors and accruals

Interest payable on deposit
Interest payable on borrowing
Unpaid Dividend

Liabilities under Finance Lease
Other liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities

2,961,796,053
66,574,127,332
11,079,117,321
2,230,824,750
1,000,000,000
412,164,023
88,860,903,126

Financial Liabilities

76,964,158,230
2,104,520,294
995,089,258
14,583,333
338,594,570
997,340
2,752,500
258,892,526
43,996,803
22,122,240
306,600,709
250,158,507
81,302,466,312

608,606,433

608,606,433

2,961,796,053
66,574,127,332
11,079,117,321
2,230,824,750
1,000,000,000
608,606,433
412,164,023
89,469,509,559

76,964,158,230
2,104,520,294
995,089,258
14,583,333
338,594,570
997,340
2,752,500
258,892,526
43,996,803
22,122,240
306,600,709
250,158,507
81,302,466,312
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Particulars

Cash in hand

Balances with B/Fls

Money at call and short notice
Interbank placement

Balance at NRB

Derivative financial instrument
Loans & Advances
Government bonds
Government treasury bills
Equity investments

Other assets

Total Financial Assets

Deposits from customers

Due to Banks & Financial Institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Banks
Debt Securities

Borrowings

Employee related liabilities
Bills payable

Creditors and accruals

Interest payable on deposit
Interest payable on borrowing
Unpaid Dividend

Liabilities under Finance Lease

Other liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities

Financial Year 2078/079

Group

‘ Amortized Cost FVTPL

Financial Assets
883,140,174 -
4,341,196,789 -
520,000,000 -
1,998,862,930 -
62,110,531,849 -
8,935,174,776 -

454,925,676 =

- 125,694,773

255,493,599 =
79,499,325,793 125,694,773

Financial Liabilities
68,395,870,950 =
2,035,638,564 =
807,904,362 S
994,221,509 o
22,916,667 =
256,566,455 =
3,101,365 =
9,731,493 s
241,541,077 S
53,150,801 =
12,924,844 =
343,614,294 =
255,533,607 =
73,432,715,989 =

FVTOCI

519,432,882

519,432,882

883,140,174
4,341,196,789
520,000,000
1,998,862,930
62,110,531,849
8,935,174,776
454,925,676
645,127,655
255,493,599
80,144,453,448

68,395,870,950
2,035,638,564
807,904,362
994,221,509
22,916,667
256,566,455
3,101,365
9,731,493
241,541,077
53,150,801
12,924,844
343,614,294
255,533,607
73,432,715,989
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‘ Financial Year 2078/079

Particulars ‘ Bank

‘ Amortized Cost FVTPL FVTOCI

Financial Assets

Cash in hand 883,052,748 - - 883,052,748
Balances with B/Fls 4,340,803,525 - - 4,340,803,525
Money at call and short notice = = = =
Interbank placement 500,000,000 - - 500,000,000

Balance at NRB
Derivative financial instrument
Loans & Advances

Government bonds

1,998,862,930

62,109,576,993
8,935,174,776

1,998,862,930

62,109,576,993
8,935,174,776

Government treasury bills 454,925,676 - - 454,925,676
Equity investments - - 519,427,379 519,427,379
Other assets 233,007,604 - - 233,007,604
Total Financial Assets 79,455,404,253 -| 519,427,379 79,974,831,632
Financial Liabilities
Deposits from customers 68,410,212,441 - - 68,410,212,441
Due to Banks & Financial Institutions 2,035,638,564 - - 2,035,638,564
Due to Nepal Rastra Banks 807,904,362 - - 807,904,362
Debt Securities 994,221,509 . S 994,221,509
Borrowings 22,916,667 - - 22,916,667
Employee related liabilities 253,980,689 - - 253,980,689
Bills payable 3,101,365 - - 3,101,365
Creditors and accruals 5,471,963 - - 5,471,963
Interest payable on deposit 241,541,077 - - 241,541,077
Interest payable on borrowing 53,150,801 - - 53,150,801
Unpaid Dividend 12,588,981 - - 12,588,981
Liabilities under Finance Lease 343,614,294 - - 343,614,294
Other liabilities 223,279,237 - - 223,279,237
Total Financial Liabilities 73,407,621,950 - - 73,407,621,950
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Il. Revenue Generating area wise segment Reporting NPR in “000”

Particulars Regular Banking | Treasury Functions Tr;::?(grt‘i:n

Revenue from External Customers 12,585,160 876,579 124,030 13,585,769
Intersegment Revenues - - - -
Net Revenue 12,585,160 876,579 124,030 13,585,769
Interest Revenue 9,856,793 826,411 - 10,683,204
Interest Expenses 6,598,820 820,396 - 7,419,216
Net Interest Revenue 3,257,972,980 6,015 - 3,263,988
Depreciation and Amortization 160,392 18 30 160,440
Segment Profit/(Loss) 1,675,060 52,469 59,032 1,786,561
Impairment Charge/(Reversal) of Loans 413,271 - - 413,271
Segment Assets 71,270,378 17,892,390 41 89,162,808
Segment Liabilities 79,218,843 2,104,520 36,297 81,359,661

b. Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets & liabilities

Revenues from external customers comprise of gross interest revenue, gross fee and commission revenue, net trading
revenue, other operating incomes and intersegment revenue.

The transaction between the branches is charged at the price decided by the bank's management on time to time
basis. The pricing mechanism is periodically reviewed by the management.

l. Revenue
Particulars ‘ NPR in "000"
Total revenues for reportable segments 13,585,769

Other revenues =
Elimination of intersegment revenues -
Entity's Revenue 13,585,769

Il. Profit or Loss

Particulars ‘ NPRin "000"

Total profit or loss for reportable segments 1,786,561
Other profit or loss -
Elimination of intersegment profits -
Unallocated amounts: -

Profit before income tax 1,786,561
Ill. Assets

Particulars ‘ NPR in "000"

Total assets for reportable segment 89,162,808

Other assets -
Unallocated amounts -
Entity's assets 89,162,808

IV. Liabilities

Particulars ‘ NPRin "000"

Total liabilities for reportable segments 81,359,661
Other liabilities -
Unallocated liabilities -
Entity's Liabilities 81,359,661
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c. Information about products and services
Revenue from each type of product and services is described in point no. 1(b) above.
+ Loans & Advances
+ Fee & Commission income
d. Information about major customers
Total revenue from any single external customer does not amount to 10 percent or more of the bank's revenue.
5.5 Share Options and share based payment

The bank does not have any share option and share based payments during the reporting period.

5.6 Contingent Liabilities & Commitment
Contingent Liabilities

Where the Bank undertakes to make a payment on behalf of its customers for guarantees issued for which an
obligation to make a payment has not arisen at the reporting date, those are included in these financial statements
as contingent liabilities.

Commitment

Where the Bank has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of a customer in the form of
loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether cancellable or not and the Bank has not made payments at the reporting
date, those instruments are included in these financial statements as commitments. Details of contingent liabilities
and commitments are given in note 4.28.

5.7 Related Party Disclosures
Following Parties have been identified as Related Parties for Bank as per NAS 24 Related Parties:

1. List of Related Parties

Name of the Related Party ‘ Related Position
Garima Capital Limited Subsidiary

Mr. Shyam Prasad Basyal Chairman

Dr. Anand Prasad Shrestha Director

Mr. Sanjeev Dhakal Director

Mr. Deependra Shrestha Director

Mr. Bimal Pandey Director

Mrs. Saraswati Pathak Women Director
Mr. Mukunda Raj Acharya Independent Director
Mr. Govinda Prasad Dhakal Key Managerial Person
Mr. Madhav Prasad Upadhaya Key Managerial Person
Mr. Anil Regmi Key Managerial Person

2. Related Party Transactions

a. Meeting Allowances to Directors

Particulars No. of Meetings Amount

Board Meeting 13 733,000
Audit Committee Meeting 7 119,000
AML Committee Meeting 5 85,000
Risk Management Committee Meeting 5 85,000
Total 30 1,022,000

A\
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Particulars ‘ Amount
Newspaper and Telephone expenses 302,800
Travelling Expenses reimbursed for Business visits 1,693,471
Interest on deposits paid to directors 4,471,663
Other related Expenses 570,556
Total 7,038,490
c. Deposits from Directors and Loan to Directors, if any
Particulars ‘ Amount
Deposits from Directors 22,353,439
Loans and Advances to Directors -
d. Emoluments and Facilities of Key Managerial Personnel
Particulars ‘ Amount
Remuneration and Benefit Paid 22,035,602
Post-Retirement Benefits -
Other Long-term Benefits -
Borrowing during the year 17,700,000
Interest on Borrowing 383,802
Interest on account balances 62,420
Other transactions benefits if any -
Total 40,181,824
e. Deposits from and Loans to Key Managerial Personnel
Particulars ‘ Amount
Deposits from Key Managerial Personnel 306,437
Loans to Key Managerial Personnel 39,200,121
f. Transaction with Subsidiary
Garima Capital Limited is the subsidiary company of the Bank, and holds 51.20% paid up capital.
Reporting Date Balances
Nature of Transaction ‘ Amount
Deposits from Garima Capital Ltd. 17,468,500
Interest on Deposits 2,189,489
Payment for Meroshare and Demat (on behalf of customers of the Bank) related to previous 461643
financial year !
Reimbursement of fees paid by Garima Capital Ltd. for Capital Increment and Mutual fund 421,700

registration to SEBON
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5.8 Merger & Acquisition
The Bank has neither entered into merger nor acquired any bank and financial institutions during the reporting
period.

5.9 Additional disclosures of non-consolidated entities

Not applicable.

5.10 Operational Lease Expenses

a. Details of Right of Use Assets

Particulars ‘ Amount

Balance at Shrawan 1, 2079 272,897,312
Less: Adjustment through PL (25,082,568)
Less: Deletion Adjustment through PL (36,484,315)
Add: Addition 65,545,914
Less: Depreciation (45,250,940)
Closing Balance of Right of Use Asset 231,625,403

Right of Use Assets has been presented in annex 4.13 property, plant and equipment.

b. Details of Lease Liability

Particulars ‘ Amount

Balance at Shrawan 1, 2079 332,704,606
Less: Adjustment through PL (20,864,231)
Less: Deletion Adjustment through PL (52,676,888)
Add: Addition 65,545,914
Add: Finance Cost 30,334,381
Less: Liability Payment (64,602,815)
Closing Balance of Lease Liability 290,440,967

c. Ageing of Actual Lease Liability

Particulars Amount

Less than one year 153,023,316
Between one to five years 582,038,567
More than five years 200,844,257
Total 935,906,140

5.11 Events after Reporting date

Events after the reporting date are those events, favorable and unfavorable, that occur between the reporting date
and the date when the financial statements are authorized for issue. All material and important events that occurred
after the reporting date have been considered and appropriate disclosures have been made in line with NAS 10 -
“Events after the Reporting Period”.

A. Recovery of Interest after year end and up to Shrawan 15, 2080

The Nepal Rastra Bank Directives requires the Bank and Financial Institutions to transfer the equivalent amount
of interest on loans and advances accounted as an interest income under the accrual basis of accounting but not
recovered up to the end of reporting period to the Regulatory Reserve from the Retained Earnings. However, the
same directives have relaxed this provision with which Bank may not appropriate such amount in case it is recovered
within the 15 days after the year end, i.e. 15th Shrawan.

In line with the aforesaid relaxation the gross amount of NPR 58,255,225 which was otherwise required to be

A\
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appropriated to the Regulatory Reserves has not been so appropriated. The details are as follows:

Particulars . 2079/80 | 2078/79

Accrued Interest Receivable 645,473,092 354,282,551
Add: Interest Recievable of restructured Loans 48,680,300 =
Less: Cessation of the Interest on Loans (68,786,907) (32,604,334)
Less: Interest received up to 15th Shrawan as per Directive no. 4 (58,255,225) -

Amount required to be appropriated to Regulatory Reserves (before staff

bonus and tax) 567,111,260 321,678,217

Net Amount required to be appropriated to Regulatory Reserves (After staff

357,280,094 202,657,277
bonus and tax)
Amount already appropriated to Regulatory Reserves (After staff bonus and tax) 202,657,277 116,071,735

Net appropriations to the Regulatory Reserves for unrecovered interest 154,622,817 86,585,541

B. Tax paid after reporting date

The Bank has paid the tax amount of NPR. 30,697,908/- on 29th Mangsir 2080 for the premium received from auction
of right. The said amount was brought on purview of income tax by the Finance Act 2080.

5.12Details of Loans and Advances

Particulars To Customers To BFls

Loans and Advances 62,532,354,695 3,011,066,909 |  65,543,421,604
Interest Receivable on Loans and Advances 574,810,025 1,876,160 576,686,185
Staff Loans and Advances 454,019,543 - 454,019,543
Total Loans and Advances (a) 63,561,184,263 3,012,943,069 66,574,127,332
i. Total Impairment as per NAS 39 569,236,314 - 569,236,314
Individual Impairment (Specific Provision) 246,414,739 - 246,414,739
Collective Impairment (General Loan Loss Provision) 322,821,575 - 322,821,575
i;; o"',‘?s':g:me“t as per norms of NRB in Loan Loss| 50, 553 56 39,143,870  1,643,397,131
Collective Impairment 926,956,811 - 926,956,811
Individual Impairment 677,296,450 39,143,870 716,440,320

Impairment Charge for the Year, higher of | and Il (b) 1,604,253,261 39,143,870 1,643,397,131

Net Loans and Advances (a-b) 61,956,931,002 2,973,799,200 64,930,730,202
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5.13 Summary of Loans and Advances based on the regulatory classification for provisioning

i. Proportion of Gross Amount Loans and Advances as per regulatory classification

‘ 2080 Ashad
Particulars ]

‘ Loan Amount ‘ % ‘ Loan Amount ‘ ) ‘ Loan Amount
Pass 61,085,493,423  93.20% 58,469,855,931 95.11% 2,668,031,237 4.56%
Watch list 3,342,248,154 5.10% 2,484,001,175 4.04% 805,853,234  32.44%
Performing Loan 64,427,741,577 98.30% 60,953,857,106 99.15% 3,473,884,471 5.70%
Sub Standard 407,459,016 | 0.62% 231,509,828 = 0.38% 175,949,187 = 76.00%
Doubtful 432,433,632 | 0.66% 173,194,569 | 0.28% 259,239,064 = 149.68%
Loss 275,787,379 | 0.42% 115,748,744 0.19% 160,038,635 138.26%
Non-Performing Loan 1,115,680,027  1.70% 520,453,141 0.85% 595,226,886 114.37%
Total Loan 65,543,421,604 100% 61,474,310,247 100% 4,069,111,357 6.62%

ii. Proportion of Loan Loss Provision (LLP) as per regulatory classification

‘ 2080 Ashad
Particulars E——

‘ LLP Amount ‘ % ‘ LLP Amount ‘ % ‘ LLP Amount %
Good 845,772,043 | 51.46% 792,672,966 @ 65.12% 53,099,077 6.70%
Watch list 185,178,861 | 11.27% 156,867,871  12.89% 28,310,990  18.05%
LLP on Performing Loan 1,030,950,904 62.73% 949,540,837 78.01% A 81,410,067 8.57%
Sub Standard 118,824,653 | 7.23% 59,691,781 | 4.90% 59,132,872 | 99.06%
Doubtful 217,834,194 | 13.26% 92,258,821 | 7.58% 125,575,374 | 136.11%
Bad 275,787,379 | 16.78% 115,748,744 9.51% 160,038,635 | 138.26%
LLP on Non-Performing Loan 612,446,227 37.27% 267,699,346 21.99% 344,746,881 128.78%
Total Loan Loss Provision 1,643,397,131 100% 1,217,240,183 100% 426,156,948 35.01%

Impairment calculation as per NAS 39

The Bank has considered evidence of impairment for loans and advances measured at amortized cost at both specific
asset and collective level. The Bank first assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists
for financial assets that are individually significant and that are not individually significant and that are found not
impaired individually are assessed collectively.

The Bank believes that coverage to this extent provides adequate assurance on the reliability of impairment
assessment of gross loans and advances.

The Bank has then grouped loans and advances made to customers into different portfolios based on the general
product type so as to achieve similarity in credit risk and repayment characteristics among loan accounts grouped
within a given portfolio for collective assessment of impairment. The groupings done are Home Loans, Short Term
Loans, Long Term Loans, Personal Loans and Vehicle Loans.

The Bank has considered overdue movement trend of past 2 years and current year data and loss given default rate
from the data since inception of the Bank for deriving loss rate in collective impairment of loans and advances.

Impairment on Loan and Advances as per norms of NRB

The Bank has provided for impairment provision as per norms of NRB in loan loss provision as given in NRB Directive
no. 2 on the basis of overdue period of principal and interest.
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5.14 Staff Loans and Advances and Employee Benefits Included in Loans and Advances to Customers of the bank

Presented in financial statements under Loans and Advances to Customers are staff loans and advances extended in
line with the Employee Service Bylaws of the Bank. Eligibility criteria for availing staff loans are directly linked to the
period of service under permanent payroll of the Bank as per the Employee Service Bylaws of the Bank. The carrying

amount of staff loans & advances as at the balance sheet date was as under:

Particulars ‘ 2079/080 ‘ 2078/079

Staff Home Loans 472,958,000 360,248,000
Staff Vehicle Loans 15,718,962 13,375,577
Personal Borrowing by Staffs 12,514,085 16,760,891
Staff Household Loans Overdraft 194,535,475 192,988,537

Less: Unwinding

Total

5.15Investment Property and Non-Banking Asset

a. Investment Property

(241,706,980)
454,019,543

(247,912,189)
335,460,816

Investment Properties Measured at Cost and the details of Investment Property of the Bank are as follows:

Particulars ‘ 2079/080 ‘ 2078/079

Balance as on 1st Shrawan 2079 36,514800 39,880,571
Add: Addition During the Year 150,753,984 4,400,000
Less: Disposal During the Year - (7,765,771)
Total 187,268,784 36,514,800

b. Non-Banking Assets

Non-Banking Assets (NBA) are the assets obtained as security for loans & advances and subsequently taken over by the

Bank. The following are the list of properties taken over by the Bank as the non-banking assets during the course of debt

recovery:

‘ Date of Booking ‘

Respective Branch

Amount of NBA
079/80 078/079

NBA

Waling 2078/11/10
New Baneshwor 2079/05/07
Barahathawa 2079/09/12
Attariya 2079/09/12
Waling 2079/09/17
Manigram 2079/09/19
Tansen 2079/09/28
Parasi 2080/02/05
Maitidevi 2080/03/10
Lazimpat 2080/03/20
Total

= 4,400,000
22,882,207 =
16,000,000 =

2,209,000 =
6,692,923 =
2,800,000 =
5,050,860 =
4,551,138 =
4,050,000 =
86,517,855 =
150,753,984 4,400,000

y/
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5.16 Liability for Long Service Leave

The detail of liability for long service leave recognized in Other Liabilities in Statement of Financial Position is as

follows:

Particulars

Group

Present Value of Unfunded Obligations
Present Value of Funded Obligations
Total Present Value of Obligations

Fair Value of Plan Assets

Present Value of Net Obligations
Recognized Liability for Defined Benefit
Obligations

Detail of Plan Assets

Particulars

079/080

248,642,582

248,642,582
107,440,008
141,202,574

141,202,574

Group
079/080

078/079 ‘

197,285,845

197,285,845
111,093,866
86,191,979

86,191,979

079/080

247,334,958

247,334,958
107,440,008
139,894,950

139,894,950

079/080

078/079
196,713,643

196,713,643
111,093,866
85,619,777

85,619,777

078/079

Equity Securities
Government Bonds
Bank Deposit
Other

Total

Movement in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations

Particulars

107,440,008
107,440,008

Group

111,093,866
111,093,866

078/079 ‘

107,440,008
107,440,008

111,093,866
111,093,866

Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1,
2079

Transfer from Sahara Bikas Bank Ltd
Actuarial Losses
Benefits Paid by the Plan

Benefits paid Directly

Current Service Costs, Past Service Costs and
Interest

Defined Benefit Obligations at Ashad End,
2080

079/080

197,285,845

17,345,764
(3,653,858)

(8,136,160)

45,800,992

248,642,582

078/079
125,703,061

10,527,589
(7,913,491)
(2,507,048)

(4,250,307)

75,726,041

197,285,845

079/080

196,713,643

17,345,764
(3,653,858)
(7,919,035)

44,848,444

247,334,958

078/079
125,703,061

10,527,589
(7,913,491)
(2,507,048)

(4,250,307)

75,153,839

196,713,643
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Movement in the Fair Value of Plan Assets

. ‘ Group
Particulars -_—
‘ 079/080 078/079 079/080 078/079

Fair Value of Plan Assets at Shrawan 1, 2079 111,093,866 75,971,122 111,093,866 75,971,122
Contributions Paid Into The Plan 37,629,792 37,629,792
Benefits Paid During The Year (3,653,858) (2,507,048) (3,653,858) (2,507,048)
Interest Income 9,834,024 8,417,924 9,834,024 8,417,924
Expected return on plan assets (9,834,024) (8,417,924) (9,834,024) (8,417,924)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at Ashad End, 2080 107,440,008 111,093,866 107,440,008 111,093,866

Amount recognized in Profit or Loss

‘ Group ‘

Particulars

‘ 079/080 078/079 ‘ 079/080 078/079

Current service costs 53,270,901 31,371,469 52,318,353 30,799,267
Past service costs-(Non-Vested)
Past service costs (Vested)

Actuarial (gain)/loss (14,819,332) 33,345,378 (14,819,332) | 33,345,378

Interest on obligation 7,349,423 11,009,194 7,349,423 11,009,194

Expected return on plan assets 8,417,924 8,417,924
Total 45,800,992 67,308,117 44,848,444 66,735,915

Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income

‘ Group ‘
Particulars —_—

‘ 079/080 078/079 ‘ 079/080 078/079
Actuarial (gain)/loss 17,345,764 504,433 17,345,764 504,433
Total 17,345,764 504,433 17,345,764 504,433

Actuarial Assumptions

Particulars | 2079-80 | 2078-79
Discount rate 10% 9%
Future salary increase 4% 4%
Withdrawal rate 5% 5%

5.17 Taxation
Status of Tax Assessment in the current fiscal year, the tax assessment of the Bank of FY 2076/77 is under progress by
Large Taxpayers Office (LTO).
Current Year Tax

Current year tax liability has been recognized on net profit at the rate of 30% after required adjustment to arrive at
taxable profit. Reconciliation between current year tax liability and current tax based on net profit of the book has
been given in Note 4.41.1.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is computed at 30% of the temporary differences between accounting base and tax base. Deferred tax
assets/ liabilities and the calculation of deferred taxes are given in Note 4.15 of Statement of Financial Position.

y/
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5.18 Loans and Advances extended to promoters

No any type of Loan facility has been extended to promoters.

5.19 Unpaid Dividend

The following unpaid dividend amount has remained outstanding as at the reporting date:

Particulars ‘ 079/080

Above 5 Years 3,775,208
Below 5 Years 18,347,032
Total Unpaid Dividend 22,122,240

5.20 Reserves and Fund

The Bank has created different types of reserves as per regulatory requirement. Such reserves are discussed and
disclosed in detail as mentioned below:

a. Regulatory Reserve

The regulatory reserve has been created of NPR 653,970,567/ up to the current year as per NRB Directive 4(3) (Ka).
The detail of regulatory reserve created in the current year is given in the Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss. The
detail of movement of Regulatory Reserves of the Bank is summarized as below:

Fiscal Year Rlel::?;:;tl . losshso}’r:ol;:;r;n DefeA'ngax ‘:{et:;;]ar:;::is Gooduwill Farlerc‘:)agl:lezIe.ﬁss rg;)trlr;;ry Total
on NBA in0Cl adjustment*
Balance As on 31st Ashad 2076 | 15,886,727 - 21,290,136 11,283,472 - | 17,945,460 - | 66,405,795
Changes in FY 2076/077 21,075,505 - (7,713,576) 7,140,702 - | (14,168,025) = 6,334,606
Balance As on 31st Ashad 2077 = 36,962,232 - 13,576,560 18,424,174 - | 3,777,435 - | 72,740,401
Changes in FY 2077/078 65,351,257 4,892,435 (13,576,560) (4,613,828) - (3,777,435) - 48,275,871
Balance as on 31st Ashad 2078 | 102,313,489 4,892,435 e 13,810,346 e e - 1 121,016,272
Changes in FY 2078/079 86,585,541 (2,120,435) = (806,733) 92,311,741 S - 175,970,114
Transfer from Sahara Bikas Bank Ltd | 13,758,247 - 14,201,580 74,174 - - - | 28,034,001
Balance as on 32nd Ashad 2079 | 202,657,277 2,772,000 14,201,580 13,077,788 | 92,311,741 - - | 325,020,386
Changes in FY 2079/080 154,622,817 | 94,975,010 18,250,647 12,142,035 = - 48959673 328,950,181

Balance ason 31" Ashad 2080 | 357,280,094 = 97,747,010 32,452,227 25,219,823 92,311,741 - 48,959,673 | 653,970,567

* Regulatory reserve maintained for insurance bonus receivable on staff loan.

b. Share Premium

The Bank has share premium of NPR 4,415,329 as at the reporting date. Detail is as below:

Particular ‘ Amount

Opening Balance as on 1st Shrawan 2079 92,311,741
Add: from shares issued 4,415,329
Less: Bonus Share Issued out of Share Premium (92,311,741)
Closing Balance 4,415,329

A\
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c. Debenture Redemption Reserve (DRR)

The Bank is annually required to transfer 20% of the debenture’s face value to redemption reserve. However, such
provision shall not be applicable in the year of issue.

Particular ‘ Amount

Opening Balance as at 1st Shrawan 2079 Nil
Add: Amount allocated to Debenture Redemption Reserve from current year Net Profit 166,666,667
Less: Amount utilized from Debenture Redemption Reserve during the year Nil
Closing Balance of the Reserve as at 31st Ashar 2080 166,666,667

d. Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

Clause 13 of the NRB Directive No.6. Requires the Bank to allocate 1% of its net profit to the corporate social
responsibility fund and spend the same for the social causes. The details of the movement of the Corporate Social
Responsibility Fund is presented below:

Particular ‘ 079/080 ‘ 078/079

Opening Balance of CSR Fund 13,777,578 10,369,227
Less: Expenses incurred from CSR Fund during the year (7,640,940) (6,927,168)
Add: Amount allocated to CSR Fund from current year net profit 12,646,761 10,300,140
Add: Transfer from Sahara Bikas Bank Limited - 35,379
CSR Fund available for next financial year 18,783,399 13,777,578

Sector Wise Corporate Social Responsibility Fund spending in FY 2079/80 is as follows:

Sectors as per SDGs ‘ Amount ‘ %

Quality Education 2,292,800 30.01%
Sustainable cities & communities 1,701,447 22.27%
Decent work & economic growth 1,589,919 20.81%
Good Health & Well Being 687,970 9.00%
Peace, justice & strong institutions 336,452 4.40%
Donation to Old Age Home 305,750 4.00%
Industry, Innovation & infrastructure 296,676 3.88%
Partnership for the Goals 189,286 2.48%
Clean Water & Sanitation 133,950 1.75%
Environmental Protection 60,000 0.79%
Responsible consumption & production 46,690 0.61%
Total 7,640,940 100%

e. Microfinance welfare fund

The bank has maintained the microfinance welfare fund to cover the risk associated with the group guarantee
microfinance lending. The bank has formulated the policy for the collection and utilization of the welfare fund. Bank
collects the certain welfare amount from the customers availing group guarantee microfinance and the amount
will be separately accounted as liability of the bank. The movement of microfinance welfare fund during the year is
presented below:

Particular ‘ Amount

Opening Balance of Microfinance Welfare Fund 61,817,964
Add: Addition during the year 7,139,520
Less: Payment during the year (5,660,401)
Closing Balance of Microfinance Welfare Fund 63,297,084

y/
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f. Employee Training Fund

The Bank and Financial Institution are required to allocate and spent at least 3% of the previous year salary and
allowances for the staff skill development as per Directive 6 of the Nepal Rastra Bank Directives. In case the allocated
amount isn't spent, the same has to be carried forward to the next financial year in an Employee Training Fund. In line
of this requirement, the movement on the Employee Training Fund is as follows:

Particular ‘ Amount

Opening Balance as at 1st Shrawan 2079 276,122
Add: 3% of the previous year salary and allowances 17,791,345
Less: Total expenses for the skill development of staffs during the year (7,188,169)

Excess/(Deficit) amount incurred for employee training and skill development program -
Fund Balance carried forward to next year 10,879,298

5.21 Promoter shares issued

The Bank has issued promoter shares through auction during the financial year 2079/80 to maintain the required
share-holding ratio of promoter and public after acquisition of Sahara Bikas Bank Limited. The summary of the shares
auctioned and allotment is presented below:

Particulars allotted of shares of shares Amount

No. of Units | Paid up value | Total Face Value Premium

Promoter Shares issued through auction 109,811 15,396,429 10,981,100 4,415,329

5.22 Proposed Dividend

The 297th Board meeting of the Bank dated 4th Poush 2080 has unanimously decided to propose the total dividend of
10% comprising 9.50% bonus shares and 0.50% cash to eligible shareholders of the Bank. The details of the dividend
proposed is presented below;

Particulars ‘ % of Paid up Share Capital ‘ Amount in NPR.

Proposed dividend - Bonus shares 9.50% 492,830,270.43
Proposed dividend - Cash 0.50% 25,938,435.29
Total Dividend 10.00% 518,768,705.72

The dividend proposed will be distributed by utilizing the balance in retained earnings and share premium account
as shown below;

Particulars ‘ Amount in NPR.

Retained Earnings 514,353,376.42
Share Premium 4,415,329.30
Total 518,768,705.72

Whatsoever stated above, the proposal of the dividend recommended by the Board will be presented in Annual
General Meeting and shall be distributed after obtaining approval of shareholders in Annual General Meeting.
5.23 Provision for Bonus to Employees

Provision for staff bonus has been made as per Bonus Act 2030, calculated at 10% of net profit before bonus. For the
FY 2079/80, the Bank has made provision of NPR. 198,506,769/- towards Staff Bonus.
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5.24 Earnings per Share

Basic Earnings per Share

Earnings per share, also called net income per share, is a market prospect ratio that measures the amount of net
income/ loss earned per share of stock outstanding. In other words, this is the amount of money each share of stock
would receive if all of the profits were distributed to the outstanding shares at the end of the year. It is calculated by
dividing profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders by the average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the period.

The earnings attributable to the ordinary equity holders consists of the earnings of the Bank after deduction of all
expenses, tax expense and preference dividends, differences arising on the settlement of preference shares, and
other similar effects of preference shares classified as equity.

The calculation of basic earnings per share of the Bank has been based on the profit/ loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders and weighted average number of shares outstanding as tabulated below:

Profit Attributable to ordinary shareholders 1,264,676,082 1,030,013,992
Weighted Average number of Ordinary Shares 51,876,871 45,798,924
Basic Earnings Per Share 24.38 2249
Restated Basic Earnings Per Share 24.38 19.85

Diluted Earnings per Share

Diluted shares are the shares that would be outstanding if all possible sources of conversion, such as convertible
bonds and stock options, were exercised. Specific financial figures in terms of fully diluted shares outstanding are
reported to allow investors to properly assess the Bank'’s financial situation. There are no dilutive shares during the
year of the Bank and the Subsidiary.

5.25 Interim Financial Statements

The Interim Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared and published on quarterly basis as per NFRS and
NRB Directive no 4 in compliance of statutory and legal requirement within the time frame prescribed.

5.26 NFRS Carve-Outs Adjustments

During the current fiscal year, the Group has not applied the numbers of standards as prescribed in NFRS and used the NFRS
carve- out adjustments. As a consequence, the net profit and retained earnings have been impacted. The impacts of each carve-
out adjustment done and the affected financial statement line items have been summarized as follows wherever quantifiable or
described otherwise:

NFRS 9: Recognition and Measurement (Incurred Loss Model measure the Impairment Loss on Loans and Advances)

NFRS 9 requires an entity to assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets measured at amortized cost is impaired. If any such evidence exists, the entity shall determine the
amount of any impairment loss. However, as per carve out on NFRS 9 Para 5.5, the Bank has assessed and measured impairment
loss on loan and advances as the higher of amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision
and amount determined as per NAS 39.

The incurred credit loss model used by the Bank in impairment testing of loans and advances in general is based on historic data
sets from the past seven years and it automatically assume an effect of significant increase in credit risk in the event of a delay of
payment dues. The impacts of the application of carve- out in the current year financials is as under:

Gross Loans and Advances (To Customers and BFls) 65,543,421,604
Impairment Loss as per NAS 39 569,236,314
Impairment Loss as per norms of NRB 1,643,397,131

The higher of two abovei.e;NPR 1,643,397,131 has been taken into account for impairment loss on loan and advances
in the preparation of consolidated financial reports.

y/
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5.27 Details of Refinance Loan and Business Continuity Loan

The Bank has provided the Refinance Loan and Business Continuity Loan. Details of such loan is presented as follows:

2078/79

| 2079/80

No. of

Amount
customers

Particulars No. of
customers

= = 473 643,454,364

Amount

Refinance Loan

5.28 Details of Concessional and Priority Sector Loans

The Bank has provided the Subsidized Loan and Deprived Sector Loans. Summary of such loan as on Ashad end 2080
is as follows:
Particulars

NPR Loan*

3,446,415 5.39%

4,863,425 7.60%
14,767,432 23.08%
23,077,272 36.06%

Loan Amountin % of Total

Subsidized Loan
Deprived Sector Loan
Priority Sector Loan
Total
*Total Loan as of Poush end 2079 has been considered for the calculation of coverage of specified loans mentioned
above.
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s_ R_ P ANDEY & CO. 2nd Fioor, House No. 2979/33 Tel.: 977-1-4720983

Nabil Galli, Maharajgunj Fax: 977-1-4720983
Chartered Accountants P. O. Box No. 2343 e-mail: info@srp.com.np
Kathmandu, Nepal

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GARIMA CAPITAL LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Garima Capital Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 31, 2080, (July 16,
2023), the Statement of Profit or Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Change in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended on that date, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereafter referred to
as “the financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company, as at Ashad 31, 2080, (July 16, 2023), and its financial performance, changes in equity,
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and comply with
Company Act, 2063, Securities Act, 2063 and other prevailing laws.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing
(NSAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Handbook of The Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ICAN's Handbook of The Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of the audit of financial statement as a whole, and in forming the auditor opinion thereon, and
the auditor does not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no any key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management report, Report of the Board of
Directors and Chairman’s statement but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial Statements in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud and error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made hy management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our examination, we would like to further report that:

i.  We have obtained all the information and explanations, which were considered necessary for the
purpose for our audit.

ii.  The company has kept proper books of accounts as required by law, in so far as it appears from
our examination of those books of account.

iii. The Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss (including other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Change in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows and attached
Schedules dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account maintained by the
company.

iv.  During our examination of the books of account of the company, we have not come across the
cases where the Board of Directors or any member thereof or any representative or any office
holder or any employee of the company has acted contrary to the provisions of law or caused
loss or damage to the company.

v.  We have not come across any fraudulence in the accounts, based on our sample examination of
the books.

vi. The company has maintained all the required capital funds, net current assets and deposits as
per relevant law.

vii. The company has maintained all the required internal control systems.

viii. We have not come across any cases where the company has conducted any activities against
the capital market and the interest of investors.

ix. The company has its audit committee.

For, S. R. Pandey & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Place: Kathmandu /
Date: Bhadra 12, 2080

UDIN: 230830CA00823wtZtz CA Laxmi Prasad Luintel

Partner
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i Statement of Financial Position
As on 31st Ashadh 2080
Particulas _______ Notes 31stAshadh2080 __32nd Ashadh2079 |

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalent 4.1 3,825,667.62 14,822,181.53
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 42 15,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
Loans and Advances 43 937,579.48 954,855.64
Investment 4.4 139,952,123.33 136,350,276.14
Current Tax Assets 45 5,755,056.35 3,978,907.07
Property and Equipment 4.6 12,503,211.82 5,199,055.63
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 4.7 429,116.77 543,842.79
Capital Work in Progress 4.6 - 3,365,535.44
Deferred Tax Assets 4.8 15,706,120.13 14,087,488.26
Other Assets 49 41,031,809.28 42,563,796.93
Total Assets 235,140,684.78 241,865,939.43
Liabilities

Borrowings 4.10 - -
Current Tax Liabilities 45 - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.8 - -
Other Liabilities 411 35,586,459.57 39,435,529.12
Total Liabilities 35,586,459.57 39,435,529.12
Equity

Share Capital 412 242,000,000.00 242,000,000.00

Calls in Advance-Right Issue - -
Share Premium - -

Retained Earning 413 (45,338,350.62) (42,462,165.52)
Reserves 4.13 2,892,575.83 2,892,575.83
Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders 199,554,225.21 202,430,410.31
Non-controlling interests - -
Total equity 199,554,225.21 202,430,410.31
Total Liabilities and Equity 235,140,684.78 241,865,939.43
Contingent Liabilities and Commitment 414 - -
Net Assets Value per Share 82.46 83.65

As per our report of even date attached

Deepak Pandey Madhav Prasad Upadjaya Anil Regmi Mahesh Prasad Kaphle CA Laxmi Prasad Luintel
Chairman Director Director Independent Director Partner
SR Pandey & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Nagima Shrestha Nirmal Bhattarai Ashok Subedi
Independent Director Chief Executive Officer Chief Operating Officer

Date: 12th Bhadra, 2080 (29th August, 2023)
Place: Kathmandu

B ———
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GARIMA CAPITAL LIMITED

Statement of Profit or Loss

For the Period 1st Shrawan 2079 to 31st Ashadh 2080

Particulars _____________________ Notes 3TstAshadh2080 __32ndAshach2079

Income

Fees and Commission Income 4.15 17,977,271.44 12,185,118.70
Fees and Commission Expense 4.16 (3,511,169.36) (4,301,050.51)
Net Fees and Commission Income (A) 14,466,102.08 7,884,068.19
Trading Income 4.17 7,413,564.80 (7,453,191.90)
Other Trading Income 4.18 1,170,102.26 2,490,264.99
Total Trading Income (B) 8,583,667.06 (4,962,926.91)
Interest Income 4.19 5,484,163.27 7,133,428.83
Interest Expense 4.20 (3,430,483.22) (988,401.22)
Net Interest Income (C) 2,053,680.05 6,145,027.61
Non-Operating Income 4.19A 196,129.26 56,442.14
Non-Operating Expenses - -
Net Non-Operating Income (D) 196,129.26 56,442.14
Impairment Charge/(Reversal) if any 4.21 = =
Total income (E) = (A+B+C=D) 25,299,578.45 9,122,611.03
Expenses
Personnel Expense 4.22 14,444,523.23 9,754,241.33
Other Operating Expenses 423 6,101,880.17 5,532,009.79
Depreciation and Amortisation 4.24 5,888,631.84 3,329,632.86
Total Expenses (F) 26,435,035.24 18,615,883.98
Profit Before Unrealised Gain/(Loss) and Income Tax (G) = (E) - (F) (1,135,456.79) (9,493,272.94)
Unrealised Gain/(Loss) due to difference of Cost and FMV of Investment  (H)  4.17 (3,360,090.17) (47,090,175.69)
Profit Before IncomeTax  (l) = (G) + (H) (4,495,546.96) (56,583,448.64)
Income Tax Expense (J) 4.25 (1,618,631.86) (14,125,406.11)
Current Tax - -
Deferred Tax (Income)/Expense (1,618,631.86) (14,125,406.11)
Profit for the Period (K)=(1)-(J) (2,876,915.10) (42,458,042.52)
Profit Attributable to:
Equity Holders (2,876,915.10) (42,458,042.52)
Non-controlling Interest - -
Profit for the Period (2,876,915.10) (42,458,042.52)
Earnings per Share (Weighted Average):
Basic Earnings per Share (1.19) (20.74)
Diluted Earnings per Share (1.19) (20.74)
As per our report of even date attached
Deepak Pandey Madhav Prasad Upadjaya Anil Regmi Mahesh Prasad Kaphle CA Laxmi Prasad Luintel
Chairman Director Director Independent Director Partner
SR Pandey & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Nagima Shrestha Nirmal Bhattarai Ashok Subedi
Independent Director Chief Executive Officer Chief Operating Officer

Date: 12th Bhadra, 2080 (29th August, 2023)
Place: Kathmandu
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Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

As on 31st Ashadh 2080

Particulars 31st Ashadh 2080 | 32nd Ashadh 2079
Profit for the Period (2,876,915.10)  (42,458,042.52)
Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Income Tax

a) Items That Will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss

« Gains/(Losses) from Investment in Equity Instruments Measured at Fair Value 730.00 (4,123.00)
» Gains/(Losses) on Revaluation - -
« Acturial Gain/(Losses) on Defined Benefit Plans - -
« Income Tax Relating to Above Items c =
Net Other Comprehensive Income That Will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss 730.00 (4,123.00)
b) Items that are or may be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
« Gains/(Losses) on Cash Flow Hedge - -
« Exchange Gains/(Losses)(Arising from Translating Financial Assets of Foreign Operation) - -
« Income Tax Relating to Above Items - -
« Reclassify to Profit or Loss - -
Net Other Comprehensive Income that are or may be Reclassified to Profit or Loss - -

c) Share of Other Comprehensive Income of Associate Accounted as per Equity Method

Other Comprehensive Income for the Period, Net of Income Tax (a+b) 730.00 (4,123.00)
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period (2,876,185.10) (42,462,165.52)
Total Comprehensive Income Attributable to Equity Holders (2,876,185.10) (42,462,165.52)

As per our report of even date

Deepak Pandey Madhav Prasad Upadjaya Anil Regmi Mahesh Prasad Kaphle CA Laxmi Prasad Luintel
Chairman Director Director Independent Director Partner
SR Pandey & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Nagima Shrestha Nirmal Bhattarai Ashok Subedi
Independent Director Chief Executive Officer Chief Operating Officer

Date: 12th Bhadra, 2080 (29th August, 2023)
Place: Kathmandu
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GARIMA CAPITAL LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows

As on 31st Ashadh 2080

31st Ashadh 2080 | 32nd Ashadh 2079

Particulars

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net Profit/(Loss) After Tax - SOPL (2,876,915.10) (42,458,042.52)
Net Profit/(Loss) After Tax - SOCI 730.00 (4,123.00)
Add. Depreciation 2,510,353.44 1,391,509.71
Add. Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets - -
Add. Fixed Assets Written Off -

Less: Utilized CSR - (100,000.00)
Add: Deferred Tax (Asset)/Liability (1,618,631.86) (14,125,406.11)
Add: Loss of disposal of fixed assets 123,362.94 -
(Increase)/Decrease in Current Assets (226,885.47) (7,856,014.18)
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities (3,849,069.55) 27,966,773.67
(Increase)/Decrease in Investment (3,601,847.19) (48,716,131.14)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (9,538,902.79) (83,901,433.57)
Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Fixed Assets Purchase (7,355,494.44) (3,659,563.44)
Sale of Fixed Assets 897,883.33 -
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (6,457,611.11) (3,659,563.44)
Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Calls in Advance - Right Share - 123,900,000.00
Payment of Dividend - (18,483,895.93)
Increase/(Decrease) in Secured Loans - -
(Increase)/Decrease in Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 5,000,000.00 (4,900,000.00)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities 5,000,000.00 100,516,104.07
Net Increase in Cash (and Cash equivalents) (10,996,513.90) 12,955,107.06
Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning 14,822,181.53 1,867,074.47
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Year 3,825,667.62 14,822,181.53

As per our report of even date

Deepak Pandey Madhav Prasad Upadjaya Anil Regmi Mahesh Prasad Kaphle CA Laxmi Prasad Luintel
Chairman Director Director Independent Director Partner
SR Pandey & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Nagima Shrestha Nirmal Bhattarai Ashok Subedi
Independent Director Chief Executive Officer Chief Operating Officer

Date: 12th Bhadra, 2080 (29th August, 2023)
Place: Kathmandu

1 \—
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Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss

As on 31st Ashadh 2080
Particulars 31st Ashadh 2080 | 32nd Ashadh 2079
Net Profit or (Loss) as per Statement of Profit or Loss (2,876,915.10) (42,458,042.52)
Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Income Tax 730.00 (4,123.00)
Total Comprehensive Income Attributable to Equity Holders (2,876,185.10)  (42,462,165.52)

Appropriations:

1. General Reserve = =
2. Corporate Social Responsibility Fund = =
Gain on Disposal of Share Classified into OCI - -

Total Profit or (Loss) after Regulatory Adjustment (2,876,185.10) (42,462,165.52)
Adjustment/Restated Reserve Balance as at 1st Shrawan, 2079 - -
Distributable Profit or (Loss) (2,876,185.10) (42,462,165.52)

As per our report of even date

Deepak Pandey Madhav Prasad Upadjaya Anil Regmi Mahesh Prasad Kaphle CA Laxmi Prasad Luintel
Chairman Director Director Independent Director Partner
SR Pandey & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Nagima Shrestha Nirmal Bhattarai Ashok Subedi
Independent Director Chief Executive Officer Chief Operating Officer

Date: 12th Bhadra, 2080 (29th August, 2023)
Place: Kathmandu
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